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DOCUMENTS INCLUDED IN THIS FORM 

The following documents are attached as exhibits, and numbered as indicated: 

Exhibit 
Number 

 
Description 

99.1 Renewal Annual Information Form of the Registrant for the year ended December 31, 
2004. 

99.2 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2004, including the report of the independent auditors with respect thereto and the 
reconciliation of differences between Canadian and United States generally accepted 
accounting principles (Note 20). 

99.3 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. 

99.4 CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act. 

99.5 CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act. 

99.6 CEO Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

99.7 CFO Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

99.8 Comments by Auditors for U.S. Readers on Canada U.S. Reporting Difference 

99.9 Consent of KPMG LLP. 

99.10 Consent of McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. 

99.11 Consent of Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. 

99.12 Consent of Paddock Lindstrom Associates Ltd. 
 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

 This annual report on Form 40-F contains or incorporates by reference forward-looking 
statements relating to future events or future performance including forward-looking statements within 
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In some cases, forward-looking 
statements can be identified by terminology such as "may", "will", "should", "expects", "projects", 
"plans", "anticipates" and similar expressions. These statements represent management's expectations or 
beliefs concerning, among other things, future operating results and various components thereof or the 
economic performance of the Registrant. Undue reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking 
statements which are based upon management's assumptions and are subject to known and unknown risks 
and uncertainties which may cause actual performance and financial results in future periods to differ 
materially from any projections of future performance or results expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, readers are cautioned that events or circumstances could cause results to 
differ materially from those predicted. For a description of some of these risks, uncertainties, events and 
circumstances, readers should review the disclosure under the heading "Risk Factors" in the Registrant's 
Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2004, which is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this 
Annual Report on Form 40-F and is incorporated by reference herein. The Registrant undertakes no 
obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements contained herein and such 
statements are expressly qualified by the cautionary statement. 
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ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM, CONSOLIDATED AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

A. Annual Information Form 

 The Registrant’s Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 
2004 is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on Form 40-F and is incorporated by 
reference herein. 

B. Consolidated Audited Annual Financial Statements 

The Registrant’s consolidated audited financial statements, including the report 
of independent chartered accountants with respect thereto, and the reconciliation of differences 
between Canadian and United States generally accepted accounting principles, are attached as 
Exhibit 99.2 to this Annual Report on Form 40-F and are incorporated by reference herein. 

B. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

The Registrant’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2004 is attached as Exhibit 99.3 to this Annual Report on Form 40-F and is 
incorporated by reference herein. 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

As of December 31, 2004, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision of 
and with the participation of Registrant’s management, including the President and Chief 
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act).  Based on that evaluation, the President and 
Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of the end of the fiscal year, the design and operation of 
these disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be 
disclosed by the Registrant in reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act were (i) 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and 
forms  and (ii) accumulated and communicated to the Registrant’s management, including its 
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure.  

It should be noted that while the Registrant’s principal executive officer and 
principal financial officer believe that the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures provide 
a reasonable level of assurance that they are effective, they do not expect that the Registrant’s 
disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial reporting will prevent all 
errors and fraud.  A control system, no matter how well conceived or operated, can provide only 
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. 

 

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

During the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 40-F no changes 
occurred in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 
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NOTICES PURSUANT TO REGULATION BTR 

None. 

 

CODE OF ETHICS FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS 

The Registrant has adopted a Code of Ethics for its President and senior financial 
officers.  This code applies to the Registrant’s President, the Vice-President, Operations, the Vice 
President, Geosciences, and the Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer.  It is available in 
print without charge to any person who requests it.  Such requests may be made by contacting the 
Registrant’s Investor Relations and Communications Advisor via email at: 
information@harvestenergy.ca or by phone at (403) 265-1178.  All amendments to the code will 
be provided to any person who requests them. There were no waivers or amendments to the Code 
of Ethics in 2004. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Identification of Audit Committee 

The following individuals comprise the entire membership of the Registrant’s 
Audit Committee:  John A. Brussa, Verne G. Johnson, and Hector J. McFadyen. 

Audit Committee Financial Expert 

The Board of Directors of the Registrant has determined that Mr. John A. Brussa, 
a member and the chairman of the Registrant’s audit committee, is an “audit committee financial 
expert” (as such term is defined by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission) and has been designated as audit committee financial expert for the Audit 
Committee of the board of the Registrant. Mr. Brussa is not “independent” as such term is defined 
by the Canadian Securities’ Administrators’ Multilateral Instrument 52-110, nor is he 
independent as such term is defined for the purposes of audit committee member independence 
under either the rules of the New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq.  By May 4, 2005, the date 
of Harvest's next annual general and special meeting of unitholders, Mr. Brussa will resign from 
the audit committee and will be replaced by an individual that meets both the requirements of the 
audit committee, as well as being independent as defined under the rules of the New York Stock 
Exchange and Nasdaq.  

The Securities and Exchange Commission has indicated that the designation of a 
person as an "audit committee financial expert" does not (i) mean that such person is an "expert" 
for any purpose, including without limitation for purposes of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 
1933, (ii) impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability that are greater than the 
duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the audit committee and 
the board of directors in the absence of such designation, or (iii) affect the duties, obligations or 
liability of any other member of the audit committee or the board of directors. 

mailto:gray@harvestenergy.ca
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES – INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

Fees payable to the Registrant’s independent auditor, KPMG LLP, for the years 
ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 totaled $572,419 and $346,820, respectively, 
as detailed in the following table.  All funds are in Canadian dollars. 

  
Year ended December 31, 2004 

 
Year ended December 31, 2003 

Audit Fees  $ 377,634  $ 238,500 
Audit Related Fees  $ 83,510  $ 42,500 
Tax Fees  $ 111,275  $ 65,820 
All Other Fees  $ -  $ - 
TOTAL  $ 572,419  $ 346,820 

 

The nature of the services provided by KPMG LLP under each of the categories indicated in the 
table is described below. 

Audit Fees 

Audit fees were for professional services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of the 
Registrant’s annual financial statements and review of the Registrant’s quarterly financial 
statements, as well as services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or 
engagements. 

Audit-Related Fees 

Audit-related fees were for assurance and related services reasonably related to the performance 
of the audit or review of the annual statements and are not reported under “Audit Fees” above.  
These services consisted of advice and guidance on new reporting standards, as well as French 
translation fees. 

Tax Fees 

Tax fees were for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning professional services.  These 
services consisted of: tax compliance including the review of tax returns; and tax planning and 
advisory services relating to common forms of domestic and international taxation (i.e. income 
tax, capital tax, goods and services tax, and valued added tax). 

All Other Fees 

In 2004 and 2003, no fees for services were incurred other than those described above under 
“Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees” and “Tax Fees”.   

PREAPPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

It is within the mandate of the Registrant’s Audit Committee to approve all audit 
and non-audit related fees.  The Audit Committee has pre approved specifically identified non-
audit tax-related services, including tax compliance; the review of tax returns; and tax planning 
and advisory services relating to common forms of domestic and international taxation (i.e. 
income tax, capital tax, goods and services tax, and valued added tax) up to a pre-determined 
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maximum annual limit of Cdn$25,000.  The Audit Committee will be informed routinely as to the 
non-audit services actually provided by the auditor pursuant to this pre-approval process.  The 
auditors also present the estimate for the annual audit related services to the Committee for 
approval prior to undertaking the annual audit of the financial statements.   

 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

The Registrant has no material off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are 
reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on the Registrant's financial condition, changes 
in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures 
or capital resources that is material to investors. For a discussion of the Registrant's other off-
balance sheet arrangements, please read Note 19 to the Registrant's audited annual consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 attached as Exhibit 99.2 to this 
Annual Report on Form 40-F and incorporated by reference herein.  

 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

 

Annual Contractual Obligation (Cdn$ thousands) Total Less than 1 year Years 2 - 4 Year 5
More than 5 

Years
Short and long-term debt 376,019           75,519             -              -              300,500           
Interest on short and long-term debt 163,024           25,997             70,993             47,329             18,705             
Interest on convertible debentures 10,008             2,176               6,527               1,305               -                  
Operating and premise leases 7,094               400                  4,304               2,390               -                  
Transportation and storage commitments 99                    35                    39                    25                    -              
Capital commitments 700                  700                  -                  -                  -              
Asset retirement obligations 334,803           -                  729                  3,648               330,426           
Total 891,747           104,827           82,592             54,697             649,631           

Maturity

 
 

UNDERTAKING 

The Registrant undertakes to make available, in person or by telephone, 
representatives to respond to inquiries made by the Commission staff, and to furnish promptly, 
when requested to do so by the Commission staff, information relating to: the securities registered 
pursuant to Form 40-F; the securities in relation to which the obligation to file an annual report on 
Form 40-F arises; or transactions in said securities. 

CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS 

The Registrant has previously filed a Form F-X in connection with the class of 
securities in relation to which the obligation to file this report arises. Any change to the name or 
address of the agent for service of process of the Registrant shall be communicated promptly to 
the Commission by an amendment to the Form F-X referencing the file number of the relevant 
registration statement. 
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Any change to the name or address of the agent for service of process of the 
registrant shall be communicated promptly to the Securities and Exchange Commission by an 
amendment to the Form F-X referencing the file number of the relevant registration statement. 
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EXHIBITS 

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report. 

Exhibit 
Number 

 
Description 

99.1 Renewal Annual Information Form of the Registrant for the year ended December 31, 
2004. 

99.2 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2004, including the report of the independent auditors with respect thereto and the 
reconciliation of differences between Canadian and United States generally accepted 
accounting principles (Note 20). 

99.3 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. 

99.4 CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act. 

99.5 CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act. 

99.6 CEO Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

99.7 CFO Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

99.8 Comments by Auditors for U.S. Readers on Canada U.S. Reporting Difference 

99.9 Consent of KPMG LLP. 

99.10 Consent of McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd.  

99.11 Consent of Gilbert Lausten Jung Associates Ltd. 

99.12 Consent of Paddock Lindstrom Associates Ltd. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the Registrant certifies that it 
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 40-F and has duly caused this Annual Report on 
Form 40-F to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized, in the City of 
Calgary, Province of Alberta, Canada. 

Dated:  March 30, 2005 

HARVEST ENERGY TRUST 
 
 
By:  //signed  
Name: David J. Rain 
Title: Vice-President and  
  Chief Financial Officer 
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1  EXHIBIT 99.2 

 

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS 
Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the information contained in this Annual 
Report and for the consistency between the financial statements and other financial reporting data 
contained elsewhere in the report. The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harvest Energy 
Trust have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Canada using estimates and careful judgment, particularly in those circumstances where the transactions 
affecting a current period are dependent upon future events. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared using policies and procedures established by management and reflect fairly 
the Trust’s financial position, results of operations and cash flow within reasonable limits of materiality and 
within the framework of the accounting policies as outlined in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management has established and maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance 
that Harvest Energy Trust’s assets are safeguarded from loss and unauthorized use, and that the financial 
information is reliable and accurate. 
 
External auditors have examined the consolidated financial statements. Their examination provides an 
independent view as to management’s discharge of its responsibilities insofar as they relate to the fairness 
of reported operating results and financial condition of Harvest Energy Trust. 
 
The Audit Committee of Harvest’s Board of Directors has reviewed in detail the consolidated financial 
statements with management and the external auditors. The financial statements have been approved by the 
Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 
((signed)) 
Jacob Roorda  
President 
 
((signed)) 
David Rain 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
March 24, 2005 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Unitholders of Harvest Energy Trust 
 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Harvest Energy Trust as at December 31, 2004 and 
2003 and the consolidated statements of income and accumulated income and cash flows for the years then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. These 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Trust as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
((signed)) 
KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Calgary, Canada 
March 24, 2005 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
As at December 31 
(thousands of Canadian dollars)   (Restated, Note 3) 

  2004  2003 
Assets     
     
Current assets     

Accounts receivable $ 44,028 $ 19,168 
Current portion of derivative contracts [Note 16]  8,861  - 
Prepaid expenses and deposits  3,014  12,131 

  55,903  31,299 
     
Deferred charges [Note 16]  24,507  1,989 
Long term portion of derivative contracts [Note 16]  3,710  - 
Capital assets [Notes 4 and 5]  918,397  210,543 
Future income tax [Note 15]  -  12,609 
Goodwill [Note 4]  43,832  - 
 $ 1,046,349 $ 256,440 
     
Liabilities and Unitholders’ Equity     
     
Current liabilities     

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [Note 6] $ 76,251 $ 18,083 
Cash distribution payable  8,358  3,422 
Current portion of derivative contracts [Note 16]  27,927  - 
Bank debt [Note 8]  75,519  63,349 

  188,055  84,854 
     
Deferred gains [Note 16]  2,177  - 
Senior notes [Note 9]  300,500  - 
Asset retirement obligation [Notes 3 and 7]  90,085  42,009 
Future income tax [Note 15]  34,671  - 
  615,488  126,863 
     
Unitholders’ equity     

Unitholders’ capital [Note 11]  465,131  117,407 
Exchangeable shares [Note 13]  6,728  - 
Equity bridge notes [Notes 10 and 17]  -  25,000 
Convertible debentures [Note 14]  24,696  - 
Accumulated income  31,416  19,478 
Contributed surplus  -  239 
Accumulated distributions  (97,110)  (32,547) 

  430,861  129,577 
 $ 1,046,349 $ 256,440 
Commitments, contingencies and guarantees [Note 19]. 
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 
 
((signed)) ((signed)) 
John A. Brussa  Verne G. Johnson 
Director Director 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED INCOME 
For the Years Ended December 31 

(thousands of Canadian dollars, except per Trust Unit amounts)   (Restated, Note 3) 

  2004  2003 
Revenue     

Oil and natural gas sales $ 331,331 $ 119,351 
Royalty expense, net  (54,236)  (16,412) 

  277,095  102,939 
     
Expenses     

Operating  73,442  36,045 
General and administrative  8,621  4,101 
Unit right compensation expense  11,359  239 
Interest on short term debt  9,445  5,582 
Interest on long term debt  5,488  - 
Depletion, depreciation and accretion  102,776  35,727 
Foreign exchange gain  (7,111)  (4,374) 
Gains and losses on derivative contracts  63,701  18,924 

  267,721  96,244 
Income before taxes  9,374  6,695 
     
Taxes     

Large corporations tax  1,505  157 
Future income tax recovery [Note 15]  (10,362)  (8,978) 
     

Net income for the year $ 18,231 $ 15,516 
     

Interest on equity bridge notes [Notes 10 and 17]  (1,070)  (870) 
Interest on convertible debentures [Note 14]  (5,223)  - 

     
Accumulated income, beginning of year  19,478  5,136 
Retroactive application of change in accounting policy [Note 3]  -  (304) 

     
Accumulated income, end of year $ 31,416 $ 19,478 

     
Net income per trust unit, basic [Note 11] $ 0.47 $ 1.16 
Net income per trust unit, diluted [Note 11] $ 0.45 $ 1.13 

     
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended December 31, 
 
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except per Trust Unit amounts)   (Restated, Note 3)
  2004  2003 
Cash provided by (used in)     
Operating Activities     

Net income for the year $ 18,231 $ 15,516 
Items not requiring cash     

Depletion, depreciation and accretion  102,776  35,727 
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss  (5,537)  1,432 
Amortization of deferred finance charges  4,086  2,556 
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts [Note 16]  11,274  - 
Future tax recovery  (10,362)  (8,978) 
Non-cash unit right compensation expense  9,535  239 

  130,003  46,492 
Settlement of asset retirement obligations  (929)  (577) 
Change in non-cash working capital  (11,103)  (12,290) 

  117,971  33,625 
     

Financing Activities     
Issue of trust units, net of issue costs  164,743  61,691 
Issue of bridge note payable  -  25,000 
Repayment of bridge notes  -  (25,000) 
Issue of equity bridge notes [Notes 10 and 17]  30,000  33,500 
Repayment of equity bridge notes [Notes 10 and 17]  (55,000)  (8,500) 
Interest on equity bridge notes  (1,070)  (870) 
Issuance of convertible debentures [Note 14]  160,000  - 
Issue costs for convertible debentures  (7,201)  - 
Interest on convertible debentures  (5,223)  - 
Issue of senior notes  311,951  - 
Repayment of bank debt, net  (44,661)  15,263 
Repayment of promissory note payable  -  (850) 
Financing costs  (13,770)  (2,334) 
Cash distributions  (47,074)  (18,488) 
Change in non-cash working capital  5,097  2,889 

  497,792  82,301 
     
Investing Activities     

Additions to capital assets  (42,662)  (27,209) 
Acquisition of Storm Energy Ltd.  (75,783)  - 
Property acquisitions  (513,865)  (93,549) 
Change in non-cash working capital  16,547  329 

  (615,763)  (120,429) 
     
Decrease in cash and short-term investments  -  (4,503) 
     
Cash and short term investments, beginning of year  -  4,503 
     
Cash and short term investments, end of year $ - $ - 
     
Cash interest payments $ 5,521 $ 2,866 
Cash tax payments $ 2,298 $ 157 
Cash distributions declared per trust unit $ 2.40 $ 2.40 
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 
(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except Trust Unit, and per Trust Unit amounts) 
 
1. Structure of the Trust 
Harvest Energy Trust (the “Trust”) is an open-ended, unincorporated investment trust formed under the laws of 
Alberta. Pursuant to its trust indenture and an administration agreement, the Trust is managed by its wholly owned 
subsidiary, Harvest Operations Corp. (“Harvest Operations”). The Trust acquires and holds net profit interests in oil 
and natural gas properties in Alberta, Saskatchewan and British Columbia held by Harvest Operations and other 
operating subsidiaries of the Trust. All properties under the Trust are operated by Harvest Operations. 
 
The beneficiaries of the Trust are the holders of Trust Units. The Trust makes monthly distributions of its 
distributable cash to Unitholders of record on the last business day of each calendar month. 
 
2. Significant Accounting Policies 
These consolidated financial statements of Harvest Energy Trust have been prepared by management in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”). These principles differ in certain 
respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and to the 
extent that they affect the Trust, these differences are described in Note 20. Certain comparative figures have been 
reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation. 
 
(a) Consolidation 
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Trust, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and its 60% 
interest in a partnership with a third party. All inter-entity transactions and balances have been eliminated upon 
consolidation. The Trust’s proportionate interest in the partnership has been included in the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
(b) Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingencies, if any, as at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Specifically, amounts recorded for 
depletion, depreciation and accretion expense, asset retirement obligations and amounts used in the impairment tests 
for goodwill and capital assets are based on estimates of oil and natural gas reserves and future costs required to 
develop those reserves. By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty. In the opinion of 
management, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality. 
 
(c) Revenue Recognition 
Revenues associated with the sale of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids are recognized when title passes to 
customers. 
 
(d) Joint Venture Accounting 
The subsidiaries of the Trust conduct substantially all of their oil and natural gas production activities through joint 
ventures and the consolidated financial statements reflect only their proportionate interest in such activities. 
 
(e) Capital Assets 
Oil and Natural Gas Activities 
The Trust follows the full cost method of accounting for its oil and natural gas activities. All costs of acquiring oil 
and natural gas properties and related development costs, including overhead charges directly related to these 
activities, are capitalized and accumulated in one cost centre. Maintenance and repairs are charged against income. 
Renewals and enhancements that extend the economic life of the capital assets are capitalized. 
 
Gains and losses are not recognized on disposition of oil and natural gas properties unless that disposition would 
alter the rate of depletion by 20% or more. 
 
Provision for depletion and depreciation of oil and natural gas assets is calculated on the unit-of-production method, 
based on proved reserves net of royalties as estimated by independent petroleum engineers. The basis used for the 
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calculation of the provision is the capitalized costs of oil and natural gas assets plus the estimated future 
development costs of proved undeveloped reserves. Reserves are converted to equivalent units on the basis of six 
thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of oil.  
 
The Trust places a limit on the aggregate carrying value of capital assets associated with oil and natural gas 
activities, which may be amortized against revenues of future periods. Impairment is recognized if the carrying 
amount of the capital assets exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the Trust’s 
proved reserves. Cash flows are calculated based on third-party quoted forward prices, adjusted for the Trust’s 
contract prices and quality differentials. 
 
Upon recognition of impairment, the Trust would then measure the amount of impairment by comparing the 
carrying amounts of the capital assets to an amount equal to the estimated net present value of future cash flows 
from Proved plus Probable reserves. The Trust’s risk-free interest rate is used to arrive at the net present value of the 
future cash flows. Any excess carrying value above the net present value of the Trust’s future cash flows would be a 
permanent impairment and reflected in net income for the relevant period. 
 
The cost of unproved properties is excluded from the impairment test calculation described above and subject to a 
separate impairment test. 
 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Depreciation and amortization of office furniture and equipment is provided for at rates ranging from 20% to 50% 
per annum. 
 
(f) Goodwill 
Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the fair value 
for accounting purposes of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired business. The goodwill balance is 
assessed for impairment annually at year-end, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances occur that 
more likely than not reduce the fair value of the acquired business below its carrying amount. The test for 
impairment is carried out by comparing the carrying amount of the reporting entity to its fair value. If the fair value 
of the Trust’s equity is less than the book value, impairment is measured by allocating the fair value of the 
consolidated Trust to its identifiable assets and liabilities at their fair values. The excess of this allocation is the fair 
value of goodwill. Any excess of the book value of goodwill over this implied fair value is the impairment amount. 
Impairment is charged to income in the period in which it occurs. Goodwill is stated at cost less impairment and is 
not amortized. 
 
(g) Asset Retirement Obligation 
The Trust records the fair value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which it incurs a legal 
obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, 
development, and normal use of the assets. The Trust uses a credit-adjusted risk free discount rate to estimate this 
fair value. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset 
and depleted and depreciated using the unit of production method over estimated net proved reserves. Subsequent to 
the initial measurement of the asset retirement obligation, the obligation is adjusted at the end of each period to 
reflect the passage of time and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. 
 
(h) Income Taxes 
The Trust and its Trust subsidiaries are taxable entities under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and are taxable only on 
income that is not distributed or distributable to their Unitholders. As both the Trust and its Trust subsidiaries 
distribute all of their taxable income to their respective Unitholders pursuant to the requirements of the Income Tax 
Act (Canada), neither the Trust nor its Trust subsidiaries make provisions for future income taxes. 
 
Harvest Operations and the corporate subsidiaries of the Trust follow the liability method of accounting for income 
taxes. Under this method, income tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the amounts reported in its financial statements and its respective tax base, using 
enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates. The effect of a change in income tax rates on future tax liabilities 
and assets is recognized in income in the period in which the change occurs. 
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(i) Unit-based Compensation 
The Trust determines compensation expense for the Trust Unit incentive plan and the Unit award incentive plan 
[Note 12] by estimating the intrinsic value of the rights at each period end and recognizing the amount in income 
over the vesting period. After the rights have vested, further changes in the intrinsic value are recognized in income 
in the period of change. 
 
The intrinsic value is the difference between market value of the Units and the exercise price of the right. The 
intrinsic value is used to determine compensation expense as participants in the plan have the option to either 
purchase the Units at the exercise price or to receive a cash payment equal to the excess of the market value over the 
exercise price. As the expense is determined based on the period end price, large fluctuations, even recoveries, in 
compensation expense may occur. As the Unit rights are exercised, cash payments are reflected against the liability 
previously recorded and any Unit issuances are reflected as increases to Unitholders’ capital.  
 
Under the terms of the plan, the exercise price of rights granted may be reduced in future periods based on the 
distributions made to Trust Unitholders.  
 
The Trust previously used the fair value method of accounting for the Trust Unit incentive plan. 
 
(j) Exchangeable Shares 
Exchangeable shares are presented as equity of the Trust as their features make them economically equivalent to 
Trust Units. 
 
(k) Deferred Financing Charges 
Deferred financing charges relate to costs incurred on the issuance of debt and are amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the debt, and are included in interest expense. 
 
(l) Financial Instruments 
Derivative financial instruments are utilized by the Trust in the management of its commodity price, foreign 
currency and interest rate exposures. The Trust uses a variety of derivative instruments to manage these exposures 
including, swaps, options and collars. The Trust may elect to use hedge accounting when there is a high degree of 
correlation between the price movements in the derivative financial instruments and the items designated as being 
hedged. The Trust documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items as well as its risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Gains and losses are recognized on 
the derivative financial instruments in the same period in which the gains and losses on the hedged item are 
recognized. If the price movements in the derivative instrument and the hedged item cease to be highly correlated, 
hedge accounting is terminated and the fair value of the derivative financial instrument at such time is recognized on 
the balance sheet as a deferred charge and recognized in income in the period in which the underlying hedged 
transaction is recognized. Future changes in the market value of the derivative financial instrument are then 
recognized in income as they occur. At December 31, 2004, the Trust has not designated any of its outstanding 
derivative instruments as hedges.  
 
For derivative transactions where hedge accounting is not applied, the Trust applies a fair value method of 
accounting by initially recording an asset or liability, and recognizing changes in the fair value of the derivative 
instrument in income as an unrealized gain or loss on derivative contracts. Any realized gains or losses on derivative 
contracts that are not designated hedges are recognized in income in the period they occur. 
 
(m) Foreign Currency Translation 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at 
the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the monthly average rate of exchange. Translation 
gains and losses are included in income in the period in which they arise. 
 
3. Changes in Accounting Policy 
 
(a) Full Cost Accounting Guideline 
Effective January 1, 2004, the Trust adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook 
Accounting Guideline 16 “Oil and Gas Accounting – Full Cost”. The changes under the new guideline include 
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modifications to the ceiling test and depletion and depreciation calculations. There were no changes to previously 
reported net income, capital assets or any other financial statement amounts as a result of the implementation of this 
guideline.  
 
(b) Asset Retirement Obligations 
Effective January 1, 2004, the Trust adopted CICA Handbook Section 3110 “Asset Retirement Obligations” in 
accounting for its asset retirement obligations. The effect of this change in accounting policy has been recorded 
retroactively with restatement of prior periods as follows: 
 

Balance sheet 
As at December 31, 

2003 
Asset retirement costs, included in capital assets $           35,166 
Asset retirement obligation 42,009 

Site restoration provision (4,321) 
Future income tax asset 1,024 
Accumulated income (1,498) 

 
 

Income statement 
Year ended 

December 31, 2003 
Accretion expense $            1,845
Depletion and depreciation on asset retirement costs 4,520

Site restoration and reclamation (4,355)
Future tax recovery (816)
Net income change (1,194)
Basic net income change per trust unit (0.10)
Diluted net income change per trust unit (0.09)

 
(c) Financial Instruments 
Effective January 1, 2004, the Trust implemented CICA Accounting Guideline 13 “Hedging Relationships” (“AcG-
13”). This guideline addresses the identification, designation and effectiveness of financial contracts for the purpose 
of applying hedge accounting. Under this guideline, financial derivative contracts must be designated to the 
underlying revenue or expense stream that they are intended to hedge, and tested to ensure they remain sufficiently 
effective. For transactions that do not qualify as designated hedges, the Trust applies a fair value method of 
accounting by initially recording an asset or liability, and recognizing changes in the fair value of the derivative 
instrument in income. 
 
Upon the implementation of this new accounting policy, the Trust recorded a liability and a corresponding asset of 
$5.5 million related to the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that did not qualify for hedge accounting. 
This amount has been fully recognized in income for the year ended December 31, 2004. 
 
4. Corporate Acquisitions 
On June 30, 2004, the Trust completed a Plan of Arrangement with Storm Energy Ltd. (“Storm”). Under this plan, 
the Trust acquired certain oil and natural gas producing properties for total consideration of approximately $192.2 
million. This amount consisted of the issuance of 2,720,837 Trust Units [Note 11] and the issuance of 600,587 
exchangeable shares each at $14.77 [Note 13], $75 million in cash, the assumption of approximately $67.3 million 
in debt and working capital deficiency and acquisition costs of $0.8 million. This transaction has been accounted for 
using the purchase price method.  
 
The following summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of 
acquisition. 
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Allocation of purchase price: Amount 
Working capital deficiency $         (10,488) 
Bank debt (56,831) 
Capital assets           213,455 
Derivative contract 863 
Goodwill 43,832 
Asset retirement obligation (8,353) 
Future income tax (57,642) 
 $          124,836 
Consideration for the acquisition:  
Cash $           75,000 
Issuance of trust units 40,183 
Issuance of exchangeable shares 8,870 
Acquisition costs 783 
 $          124,836 

 
On June 1, 2003, the Trust acquired all of the common shares and the Net Profit Interest of a private company. Total 
consideration paid by the Trust was $10.1 million, and consisted of the issuance of 625,000 Trust Units at a price of 
$10.00 per Trust Unit, $3 million in cash and an $850,000 unsecured demand promissory note bearing an interest 
rate of 10% per annum effective June 27, 2003. The Trust assumed $2.5 million of working capital, $2.8 million of 
bank debt and acquired $15.4 million in capital assets as part of this acquisition. 
 
5. Capital Assets 
 

December 31, 2004      Cost 

Accumulated 
depletion and 
depreciation 

Net book 
value 

Oil and natural gas properties $    845,396 $       (110,077) $    735,319 
Production facilities and equipment      209,984          (27,817)      182,167 

Office furniture and equipment        1,337           (426)         911 
Total $   1,056,717  $      (138,320)  $   918,397 

 

December 31, 2003      Cost 

Accumulated 
depletion and 
depreciation 

Net book 
value 

Oil and natural gas properties $    202,529 $       (31,262) $    171,267 
Production facilities and equipment       47,071          (8,346)       38,725 

Office furniture and equipment        708           (157)         551 
Total $   250,308  $      (39,765)  $   210,543 

 
On September 2, 2004, the Trust purchased oil and natural gas producing properties from a senior producer for cash 
consideration of approximately $526 million before final working capital adjustments. Final adjustments reduced the 
Trust’s purchase price to $511.4 million. In conjunction with the acquisition of these properties, the Trust issued 
approximately $175.2 million in subscription receipts which were converted into 12,166,666 Trust Units upon 
completion of the purchase [Note 11], and $100 million in 8% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures [Note 
14]. The balance of the acquisition cost was funded with a new credit facility arrangement [Note 8]. 
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On October 16, 2003, the Trust acquired the Carlyle Properties in southeastern Saskatchewan for total consideration 
of approximately $79.5 million before costs and purchase price adjustments. The acquisition was partially financed 
by the issue of Trust Units on October 16, 2003, with the balance being funded by the bank facility. 
 
General and administrative costs of $3.6 million (2003 – $1.3 million) have been capitalized during the year ended 
December 31, 2004.  
 
All costs are subject to depletion and depreciation at December 31, 2004 including future development costs of 
$83.3 million (2003 – $15.2 million). $28.6 million (2003 – nil) of undeveloped properties were excluded from the 
asset base subject to depletion at December 31, 2004.  
 
In accordance with Canadian GAAP, the Trust performed an impairment test as at December 31, 2004 and 2003. 
The crude oil and natural gas future prices used in the impairment test were obtained from third parties and were 
adjusted for commodity price differentials specific to the Trust. Based on these assumptions, the undiscounted future 
net revenue from the Trust’s proved reserves exceed the carrying value of the Trust’s oil and natural gas assets as at 
December 31, 2004, and therefore no impairment was recorded. 
 

Benchmark Prices: 

 
Year 

WTI Oil 
(US$/bbl) 

Foreign 
Exchange Rate 

Edmonton Light Crude 
Oil (CDN$bbl) 

AECO Gas 
(CDN$/GJ) 

2005 42.00 0.83 49.60 6.45 
2006 39.50 0.83 46.60 6.20 
2007 37.00 0.83 43.50 6.05 
2008 35.00 0.83 41.10 5.80 
2009 34.50 0.83 40.50 5.70 

Thereafter (escalation) 2.0% 0% 2.0% 2.0% 
 
6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
 

As at December 31, 2004 2003 
Trade accounts payable $         13,697 $           9,524 
Accrued interest 5,993 897 
Trust unit incentive plan [Note 12] 9,774 - 
Premium on derivative contracts 4,500 - 
Accrued closing adjustments on asset 
acquisition 13,546 - 
Other accrued liabilities 27,139 7,629 
Large corporation taxes payable 1,602 33 
 $         76,251 $          18,083 

 
7. Asset Retirement Obligation 
The Trust’s asset retirement obligation results from its net ownership interest in oil and natural gas assets including 
well sites, gathering systems and processing facilities and the estimated costs and timing to reclaim and abandon 
them. The Trust estimates the total undiscounted amount of cash flows required to settle its asset retirement 
obligation to be approximately $334.8 million which will be incurred between 2004 and 2023.  The majority of the 
costs will be incurred between 2015 and 2021. A credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 10% was used to calculate the fair 
value of the asset retirement obligation.  
 
A reconciliation of the asset retirement obligation is provided below: 
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Year ended December 31 2004 2003 
   
Balance, beginning of year $          42,009 $          15,566 

Liabilities incurred 53,488 25,175 
Revision of estimates (8,704) - 
Liabilities settled  (929) (577) 
Accretion expense 4,221 1,845 
Balance, end of year $          90,085 $          42,009 

 
8. Bank Debt 
As at December 31, 2004, Harvest Operations has a senior borrowing base credit facility with a syndicate of lenders. 
This facility consists of a $310 million production loan, a $15 million operating loan, and a U.S. $21.3 million mark-
to-market credit to be used for financial instrument hedging. The term of the facility is to June 29, 2005. Availability 
under the facility is subject to a borrowing base calculation performed by the lenders at least on a semi-annual basis. 
The facility permits drawings in Canadian or U.S. dollars, and includes banker’s acceptances, LIBOR loans and 
letters of credit. Outstanding balances bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to 2.25% above the applicable 
Canadian or U.S. prime rate depending upon the type of borrowing and the debt to annualized cash flow ratio. The 
debt is secured by a $750 million debenture with a fixed and floating charge over all of the assets of Harvest 
Operations, and a guarantee by the Trust and its subsidiaries. 
 
A bridge facility of $70 million was provided by the Trust’s lenders to assist in the closing of the significant 
property acquisition in September [Note 5]. This facility was due to mature on June 1, 2005, and outstanding 
balances under this facility accrued interest at progressive rates of 3% to 8% above the applicable Canadian prime 
rate. The bridge facility was repaid in full with the net proceeds of the senior notes issuance [Note 9]. 
 
9. Senior Notes 
On October 14, 2004, Harvest Operations closed an agreement to sell, on a private placement basis in the United 
States, U.S.$250 million of senior notes due October 15, 2011. The senior notes are unsecured and bear interest at an 
annual rate of 7 7/8% and were sold at a price of 99.3392% of their principal amount. A discount of $2.1 million on 
the senior notes is recorded in deferred charges and amortized into interest expense over the term of the notes. 
Interest is payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15. The senior notes are unconditionally guaranteed by 
the Trust and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Trust used the net proceeds of the offering to repay in full 
Harvest’s bank bridge facility and partially repay outstanding balances under Harvest’s senior credit facility. The 
fair value of the senior notes at December 31, 2004 was U.S.$250.6 million (Cdn$301.2 million). 
 
 
10. Equity Bridge Notes 
A director of Harvest Operations and a corporation controlled by that director had advanced $25 million pursuant to 
the equity bridge notes as at December 31, 2003. On January 2, 2004 Harvest Operations paid $665,068 in accrued 
interest on these notes. On January 26 and 29, 2004, Harvest Operations repaid the principal amount and paid 
$185,232 of interest accrued since December 31, 2003. The notes were amended on June 29, July 7 and July 9, 
2004. These notes were drawn by $30 million and repaid as to $20 million on August 11, 2004 and $10 million on 
December 30, 2004. The notes accrued interest at 10% per annum, were secured by a fixed and floating charge on 
the assets of the Trust and were subordinate to the interest of the senior secured lenders pursuant to Harvest 
Operations’ credit facility. 
 
The Trust had the option to settle the quarterly interest payments under the equity bridge notes with cash or the issue 
of Trust Units. If the Trust elected to issue Trust Units, the number of Trust Units to be issued to settle a quarterly 
interest payment would have been the equivalent of the quarterly payment amount divided by 90% of the most 
recent ten-day weighted average trading price. The Trust had the option at maturity of the notes to settle the 
principal obligation with cash or with the issue of Trust Units. The terms to settle principal with Units is the same as 
with the interest option described above. 
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11. Unitholders' Capital 
 
(a) Authorized 
The authorized capital consists of an unlimited number of Trust Units. 
 
(b) Issued 

 
Number of units 

(000s) 
 

Amount 
   
As at December 31, 2002 9,312 $        36,728   
Exercise of warrants 150 150 
Special warrant exercise 1,500 15,000 
Acquisitions 825 8,350 
Trust unit issue 4,313 48,645 
Distribution reinvestment plan issuance 1,009 10,638 
Trust unit issue costs - (2,104) 
As at December 31, 2003 17,109 $       117,407 
Storm Plan of Arrangement [Note 4] 2,721 40,183 
Conversion of subscription receipts [Note 5] 12,167 175,200 
Convertible debenture conversions-9% series 3,521 49,300 
Convertible debenture conversions-8% series 5,221 84,841 
Exchangeable share retraction 152 2,142 
Distribution reinvestment plan issuance  752 12,553 
Unit appreciation rights exercise 145 721 
Trust unit issue costs - (17,216) 

As at December 31, 2004 41,788 $        465,131 
 
(c) Per Trust Unit Information 
 
The following table summarizes the net income and Trust Units used in calculating income per Trust Unit: 
 

 2004 2003 
Net income adjustments   
Net income $           18,231 $          15,516 
Interest on equity bridge notes (1,070) (870) 
Interest on convertible debentures (5,223) - 
Net income available to Trust unitholders $           11,938 $          14,646 
 
Weighted average trust units adjustments 

  

Weighted average trust units outstanding 25,033,567 12,590,937 
Weighted average exchangeable shares outstanding(1) 290,090 - 
Weighted average trust units outstanding, basic 25,323,657 12,590,937 
Effect of trust unit appreciation rights 1,140,738 411,868 
Weighted average trust units outstanding, diluted(2) 26,464,395 13,002,805 

(1) Reflects the weighted average of exchangeable shares outstanding based on the conversion ratio at December 31, 2004. 
(2) Weighted average Trust Units outstanding diluted for 2004 does not include the impact of the conversion of the debentures as the impact 
would be anti-dilutive. Total Units excluded amount to 6,004,145. 

 
 
12. Trust Unit Incentive Plans 
The Trust Unit incentive plan was established in 2002. In December 2004, the plan was modified such that the 
ability to settle a Unit right with cash is now solely at the option of the holder and not subject to the discretion of the 
Board of Directors. The Trust is authorized to grant non-transferable rights to purchase Trust Units to directors, 
officers, consultants, employees and other service providers to an aggregate of 1,487,250 Trust Units, of which 
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1,371,475 were granted as of December 31, 2004. The initial exercise price of rights granted under the plan is equal 
to the market price of the Trust Units at the time of grant and the maximum term of each right is five years. The 
rights vest equally over four years commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date. The exercise price of the 
rights may be reduced by an amount up to the amount of cash distributions made on the Trust Units subsequent to 
the date of grant of the respective right, provided that the Trust’s net operating cash flow (on an annualized basis) 
exceeds 10% of the Trust's recorded cost of capital assets less all debt, working capital deficiency (surplus) or debt 
equivalent instruments, accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization charges, asset retirement obligations, 
and any future income tax liability associated with such capital assets. Any portion of a distribution that does not 
reduce the exercise price on vested rights is paid to the holder in cash on a semi-annual basis. 
 
As a result of the modification of the Trust Unit incentive plan, the Trust is required to recognize an obligation for 
all of the Units reserved under the plan. This obligation represents the difference between the market value of the 
Trust Units and the exercise price of the Unit rights outstanding under the plan. As such, an obligation of $9.8 
million has been recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities for the graded vested portion of the 1,117,725 
Trust Units outstanding under the plan at December 31, 2004. A one time charge of $8.2 million has been included 
in Unit right compensation expense to reflect the additional expense resulting from the change in accounting from 
the fair value method previously used to the intrinsic method. The amount previously expensed has been removed 
from contributed surplus and reflected in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
 
The following summarizes the Trust Units reserved for issuance under the Trust Unit incentive plan: 
 

 2004 2003 

 

 Unit 
Appreciation 

Rights 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 

 Unit 
Appreciation 

Rights 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price(a) 

Outstanding beginning of year    1,065,150 $      9.04 787,500  $     8.00 

Granted      445,600 16.47 277,650  11.94 
Exercised  (253,750)   8.30           -                -   
Cancelled (139,275) 10.91           -            -   
Outstanding before exercise price 
reductions 1,117,725      11.92  1,065,150     9.04 
Exercise price reductions  -       (1.83) -        (1.11) 
Outstanding, end of year 1,117,725 $     10.09 1,065,150  $     7.93 
Exercisable before exercise price 
reductions         206,688     $      8.89     196,875  $     8.00 
Exercise price reductions  -      (2.64)         -         (1.30) 
Exercisable, end of year    206,688  $      6.25  196,875    $     6.70 

(a) adjusted to retroactively reflect modifications to the plan made in 2004. 
 
The following table summarizes information about Unit appreciation rights outstanding at December 31, 2004. 

   Outstanding   Exercisable  

Exercise Price 
before price 

reductions 

Exercise Price 
net of price 
reductions 

Outstanding at 
December 31, 

2004 

Exercise 
Price net of 

price 
reductions(a) 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life (a) 

Exercisable 
at 

December, 
31, 2004 

Exercise Price 
net of price 

reductions (a) 
$8.00 - 10.21 $5.18 - $7.86       509,625 $      5.27     2.9      163,375  $      5.23 

$10.30 - $13.35 $7.98 - $11.97     214,700      10.31       3.7       43,313        10.11 
$13.75 - $18.90 $12.37 -$18.50 308,400       14.92        4.5          -  n/a 
$19.90 - $23.70 $19.50 - $23.30        85,000       20.92        4.8          -   n/a 
$8.00 - $23.70 $5.18 - $23.30 1,117,725 $     10.09 3.7    206,688  $      6.25 

(a) Based on weighted average Unit appreciation rights outstanding. 
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When the Trust adopted the fair value method of accounting for its Trust Unit incentive plan on January 1, 2003, it 
was required to calculate the pro forma impact of having adopted that method from the date all rights were initially 
granted. 
 
For purposes of those calculations the fair value of each Trust Unit right has been estimated on the grant date using 
the following: 
 

 December 31, 2003 

Expected volatility  23.3% 
Risk free interest rate  4.1% 
Expected life of the trust unit rights  4 years 
Estimated annual distributions per unit  $2.40 

 
As at December 31, 2003 for the purposes of pro forma disclosures, the expense related to all of the Trust Unit rights 
issued prior to December 31, 2002 is reflected in proforma net income as shown below: 
 

  (Restated Note 3) 
  2003 

Net income As reported $15,516 
 Pro forma $14,228 
Income (loss) per unit – basic As reported $1.16 
 Pro forma $1.06 
Income (loss) per unit – diluted As reported $1.13 
 Pro forma $1.03 

 
During the years ended December 31, the Trust has recognized non-cash compensation expense of $9.5 million in 
2004 and $239,000 in 2003 related to Trust Unit rights and included it in general and administrative expense in the 
consolidated statements of income. 
 
Unit Award Incentive Plan 
In the year ended December 31, 2004, the Trust has implemented a Unit Award Incentive Plan (“Unit Award Plan”). 
The Unit Award Plan authorizes the Trust to grant awards of Trust Units to directors, officers, employees and 
consultants of the Trust and its affiliates. Subject to the Board of Directors’ discretion, awards vest annually over a 
four year period and, upon vesting, entitle the holder to receive the number of Trust Units subject to the award or the 
equivalent cash amount. The number of Units to be issued is adjusted at each distribution date for an amount 
approximately equal to the foregone distributions. The fair value associated with the Trust Units granted under the 
Unit Award Plan is expensed in the statement of income over the vesting period. The Trust recorded compensation 
expense of $56,000 in 2004 related to this plan.  The Trust may issue up to a maximum of 150,000 Trust Units under 
the Unit Award Plan. In 2004, 15,000 Trust Units were issued under this plan, of which 5,000 were subsequently 
cancelled. 
 
13. Exchangeable Shares 
 
(a) Authorized 
Harvest Operations is authorized to issue an unlimited number of exchangeable shares without nominal or par value. 
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(b) Issued 
 

Exchangeable shares, series 1  
 Number Amount 

Storm Plan of Arrangement 600,587 $            8,870 
Shareholder retractions (145,040) (2,142) 
As at December 31, 2004 455,547 $            6,728 

 
On June 30, 2004, 600,587 exchangeable shares, series 1 were issued at $14.77 each as partial consideration under 
the Plan of Arrangement with Storm [Note 4]. The exchangeable shares, series 1 can be converted at the option of 
the holder at any time into Trust Units. The number of Trust Units issued to the holder upon conversion is based 
upon the applicable exchange ratio at that time. The exchange ratio is calculated monthly and adjusts to account for 
distributions paid to Unitholders during the period that the exchangeable shares are outstanding. The exchangeable 
shares are not eligible to receive distributions. The exchangeable shares that have not been converted by the holder 
may be redeemed in part or in their entirety by Harvest Operations at any date until June 30, 2009, at which time all 
remaining exchangeable shares in this series will be redeemed for Trust Units. The exchangeable shares had an 
exchange ratio of 1:1.06466 as at December 31, 2004. 
 
14. Convertible Debentures 
On January 29, 2004, the Trust issued $60 million of 9% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures due May 
31, 2009. Interest on the debentures is payable semi-annually in arrears in equal installments on May 31 and 
November 30 in each year, commencing May 31, 2004. The debentures are convertible into fully paid and non-
assessable Trust Units at the option of the holder at any time prior to the close of business on the earlier of May 31, 
2009 and the business day immediately preceding the date specified by the Trust for redemption of the Debentures, 
at a conversion price of $14.00 per Trust Unit plus a cash payment for accrued interest and in lieu of any fractional 
Trust Units resulting on the conversion. The debentures may be redeemed by the Trust at its option in whole or in 
part subsequent to May 31, 2007, at a price equal to $1,050 per debenture between June 1, 2007 and May 31, 2008 
and at $1,025 per debenture between June 1, 2008 and May 31, 2009. Any redemption will include accrued and 
unpaid interest at such time. Under both redemption options, the Trust may elect to pay both the principal and 
accrued interest in the form of Trust Units at a price equal to 95% of the weighted average trading price for the 
preceding 20 consecutive trading days, 5 days prior to settlement date. 
 
On August 10, 2004, the Trust issued of $100 million of 8% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures due 
September 30, 2009. Interest on the debentures is payable semi-annually in arrears in equal installments on March 
31 and September 30 in each year, commencing March 31, 2005. The debentures are convertible into fully paid and 
non-assessable Trust Units at the option of the holder at any time prior to the close of business on the earlier of 
September 30, 2009 and the business day immediately preceding the date specified by the Trust for redemption of 
the debentures, at a conversion price of $16.25 per Trust Unit plus a cash payment for accrued interest and in lieu of 
any fractional Trust Units resulting on the conversion. The debentures may be redeemed by the Trust at its option in 
whole or in part subsequent to September 30, 2007, at a price equal to $1,050 per debenture between October 1, 
2007 and September 30, 2008 and at $1,025 per debenture between October 1, 2008 and September 30, 2009. Any 
redemption will include accrued and unpaid interest at such time. Under both redemption options, the Trust may 
elect to pay both the principal and accrued interest in the form of Trust Units at a price equal to 95% of the weighted 
average trading price for the preceding 20 consecutive trading days, 5 days prior to settlement date. This series of 
convertible debentures ranks pari-passu with the outstanding debentures issued on January 29, 2004. 
 
The following table summarizes the issuance and subsequent conversions of the convertible debentures: 
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 9% Series 8% Series Total 
 Number of 

debentures Amount 
Number of 
debentures Amount Amount 

January 29, 2004 issuance 60,000 $60,000 - - $60,000 
August 10, 2004 issuance - - 100,000 $100,000 100,000 
Converted for trust units (49,300) (49,300) (84,841) (84,841) (134,141) 
Convertible debenture issue costs  (2,667)  (4,534) (7,201) 
Convertible debenture issue costs      
related to the converted debentures  2,184  3,854 6,038 
As at December 31, 2004 10,700 $10,217 15,159 $14,479 $24,696 
Fair value at December 31, 2004  $17,441  $21,223 $38,664 
 
15. Income Taxes 
Future income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities of Harvest Operations and the Trust’s other corporate subsidiaries and their corresponding income tax 
bases. The legislated reductions in the Federal and Provincial income tax rates were implemented as expected in 
2004. Federal rates are expected to decline further until 2007, resulting in an effective tax rate of approximately 34% 
for the Trust, which is the rate applied to the temporary differences in the future income tax calculation. 
 
The provision for future income taxes varies from the amount that would be computed by applying the combined 
Canadian Federal and Provincial income tax rates to the reported income before taxes as follows: 
 
  2004  2003 
Income before taxes $ 9,374 $ 6,695 
Multiplied by tax rate  38.9%  40.6% 
Computed income tax expense at statutory rates   3,646  2,718 
Amount included in Trust income  (17,433)  (13,293) 
  (13,787)  (10,575) 
Increase (decrease) resulting from the following:     
Non-deductible crown charges  1,278  (61) 
Resource allowance  (1,731)  2,062 
Non-tax portion of capital gain  2,633  (1,282) 
Unit appreciation rights expense  560  99 
Rate change  549  794 
Other  136  (15) 
Future income tax recovery $ (10,362) $ (8,978) 
 
The components of the future income tax liability (asset) are as follows: 
 
  2004  2003 
Net book value of oil and natural gas assets in excess of tax 
pools 

 
$ 46,333 

 
$ (1,085) 

Asset retirement obligation  (9,691)  (9,468) 
Net unrealized gains on derivative contracts and foreign 
exchange 

 
2,293 

 
- 

Tax loss carry forwards  (1,172)  (1,649) 
Deferral of taxable income in partnership  2,339  - 
Working capital and other items  (5,431)  (407) 
Future income tax liability (asset) $ 34,671 $ (12,609) 
 
The non-capital losses described above expire in the years 2009 and 2010. 
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16. Financial Instruments 
The Trust is exposed to market risks resulting from fluctuations in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates in the normal course of operations. 
 
(a) Fair Values 
Financial instruments of the Trust consist mainly of accounts receivable, deposits, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, cash distributions payable, bank debt, convertible debentures and senior notes. Other than as disclosed in 
the related notes to the convertible debentures and the senior notes, there were no significant differences between the 
carrying values of these financial instruments reported on the balance sheet and their estimated fair values due to 
their short term to maturity 
 
(b) Interest Rate Risk 
The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on its bank debt. All of the Trust’s other debt has fixed interest rates. 
 
(c) Credit Risk 
Substantially all accounts receivable are due from customers in the oil and natural gas industry and are subject to 
normal industry credit risks. Concentration of credit risk is mitigated by having a broad customer base, which 
includes a significant number of companies engaged in joint operations with the Trust. The Trust periodically 
assesses the financial strength of its partners and customers, including parties involved in marketing or other 
commodity arrangements. The carrying value of accounts receivable reflects management’s assessment of the 
associated credit risks. 
 
(d) Foreign Exchange Rate Risk 
The Trust is exposed to the risk of changes in the Canadian/U.S. dollar exchange rate on sales of commodities that 
are denominated in U.S. dollars or directly influenced by U.S. dollar benchmark prices. In addition, the Trust’s 
senior notes are denominated in U.S. dollars (U.S.$250 million). These notes act as an economic hedge to help offset 
the impact of exchange rate movements on commodity sales during the year. As at December 31, 2004 the full 
balance of the notes is still outstanding and is not repayable until October 15, 2011. Interest is payable semi-
annually on the notes in U.S. dollars. 
 
(e) Commodity Risk Management 
The Trust uses fixed price oil sales contracts and derivative financial instruments to manage its commodity price 
exposure. Under the terms of some of the derivative instruments, Harvest Operations is required to provide security 
from time to time based on the underlying market value of those contracts. The Trust is also exposed to counterparty 
risk for these derivative contracts. This risk is managed by diversifying the Trust’s derivative portfolio among a 
number of counterparties and by dealing with large investment grade institutions. The following is a summary of the 
oil sales price derivative contracts as at December 31, 2004, that have fixed future sales prices: 
 

Oil price swap contracts based on West Texas Intermediate 

Daily Quantity Term Price per Barrel 
Mark to Market 

Gain (Loss)  
500 Bbl/d  January through December 2005 U.S. $24.00 $       (4,107)  
1,100 Bbl/d January through March 2005 U.S. $22.38 (2,535)  
1,030 Bbl/d April through June 2005 U.S. $22.18 (2,358)  
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50% Participating swap contracts based on West Texas Intermediate 

8,750 Bbl/d Jan – Dec 2006 U.S. $38.16(b) $        3,710  
     

Oil price collar contracts based on West Texas Intermediate 
2,500 Bbl/d January through June 2005 U.S. $28.40 – 32.25 ($21.80) $       (6,032) (a) 
1,500 Bbl/d July through December 2005 U.S. $28.17 – 32.10 ($22.33) (3,296) (a) 
2,000 Bbl/d January through December 2005 U.S. $28.00 – 42.00 (529)  
(a) Harvest has sold put options at the average price denoted in parenthesis, for the same volumes as the associated commodity contracts. The 
counterparty may exercise these options if the respective index falls below the specified price on a monthly settlement basis. 
(b) This price is a floor. The Trust realizes this price plus 50% of the difference between spot price and this price. 
 

Daily Quantity Term Type 
Price per Bbl 

($U.S.) 
Mark to Market Gain 

(Loss) 
4,000 bbls/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Put 30.00 $              937 
1,972 bbls/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Short Call 30.00           (11,261) 
1,972 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Call 40.00              4,642 
     
7,000 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Put 35.00 $            4,050 
2,380 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Short Call 35.00            (9,239) 
2,380 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Call 45.00              3,090 
     
7,500 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Put 40.00 $            9,142 
3,675 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Short Call 40.00            (8,651) 
3,675 bbl/d  Jan - Dec 2005 Long Call 50.00              2,678 
     
7,500 bbl/d  Jan - June 2006 Long Put 34.00 $            2,989 
3,750 bbl/d  Jan - June 2006 Short Call 34.00            (7,252) 
3,750 bbl/d  Jan - June 2006 Long Call 44.00              3,170 

 
(1) Each group of a long put, short call and a long call reflect an "indexed put option". These series of puts and calls serve to fix a floor price 
while retaining upward price exposure on a portion of price movements above the floor price. 
 
The following is a summary of electricity price physical and financial swap contracts entered into by Harvest 
Operations to fix the cost of future electricity usage as well as a put option related to the U.S./Canadian dollar 
exchange rate as at December 31, 2004: 
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Swap contracts based on electricity prices 

Weighted Average 
Quantity Term 

Average Price per 
Megawatt 

Mark to Market 
Gain (Loss) 

24.8 MWH January through December 2005 Cdn $47.43 $         1,272 
29.9 MWH January through December 2006 Cdn $47.51 (196) 
    

Swap contracts based on electricity heat rate 

Quantity Term Heat Rate 
Mark to Market 

(Loss) 
    
5 MW January through December 2005 8.40 GJ/MWh $          (80) 
    

Foreign currency contracts 
Monthly Contract 

Amount Term Contract Rate 
Mark to Market 

Gain 
U.S. $8.33 million January through December 2005 1.20 Cdn / U.S. $        4,500(1) 
    
(1) Represents the premium paid on this contract. 
 
At December 31, 2004, the net unrealized loss position reflected on the balance sheet for all the financial derivative 
contracts outstanding at that date was approximately $15.4 million. Harvest Operations has provided deposits to 
some counterparties for a portion of its financial derivative contracts, based on the fair value of those contracts at 
the end of the trading day. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2004, the total unrealized loss recognized in the statement of income was $11.3 
million. The realized losses on all derivative contracts are included in the period in which they are incurred. Both of 
these amounts are reflected in Gains and Losses on Derivative Contracts on the statement of income. 
 
At October 1, 2004, the Trust discontinued hedge accounting for all of its derivative financial instruments. For 
those contracts where hedge accounting had previously been applied, a deferred charge or gain was recorded equal 
to the fair value of the contracts at the time hedge accounting was discontinued with a corresponding amount 
recorded in the derivative contracts balance. The deferred charge or gain is recognized in income in the period in 
which the underlying transaction is recognized.  
 
For the year ended December 31, 2004, $14.9 million of the deferred charge and $350,000 of the deferred gain has 
been amortized and recorded in gains and losses on derivative contracts in the statement of income. At December 
31, 2004, $10.8 million and $2.2 million has been recorded as a deferred charge and a deferred gain, respectively 
on the balance sheet. 
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 December 31 

Deferred charges - asset 2004 2003 
   
Balance, beginning of year $              1,989 $            2,210 
Deferred charge related to derivative contracts 
recorded upon adoption of AcG-13 5,490                  - 
Deferred charge related to derivative contracts    
recorded upon discontinuing hedge accounting 20,215 - 
Discount on senior notes [Note 9] 2,075  
Financing costs incurred 13,770 2,335 
Amortization of deferred charge related to 
derivative contracts(1) (14,946)                  - 
Amortization of deferred financing costs(2) (4,086) (2,556) 
Balance, end of year $             24,507 $            1,989 

 
 December 31 

Deferred gains - liability 2004 2003 
   
Balance, beginning of year $                  - $                - 
Deferred gains related to derivative contracts   
recorded upon discontinuing hedge accounting 2,527 - 
Amortization of deferred gains related to derivative 
contracts(1) (350) - 
Balance, end of year $              2,177 $                - 

(1) Recorded within gains and losses on derivative contracts 
(2) Recorded within interest expense 
 
17. Related Party Transactions 
Refer to Note 10 regarding equity bridge notes received from a director of Harvest Operations and a corporation 
controlled by that director. 
 
A corporation controlled by a director of Harvest Operations sublets office space and is provided administrative 
services by Harvest Operations on a cost recovery basis. 
 
18. Change in Non-Cash Working Capital 
 Year ended December 31 

 2004 2003 

   
Changes in non-cash working capital items:   
Accounts receivable $       (24,860) $     (5,590) 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 9,117 (11,596) 
Current portion of derivative contracts assets (8,861) - 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 58,168 12,154 
Cash distributions payable 4,936 1,559 
Current portion of derivative contracts liability 27,927 - 
 $        66,427 $     (3,473) 
   
Changes relating to operating activities $        (11,103) $    (12,290) 
Changes relating to financing activities 5,097 2,889 
Changes relating to investing activities 16,547 329 
Add: Non cash changes 55,886 5,599 
 $        66,427 $     (3,473) 
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19. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees 
From time to time, the Trust is involved in litigation or has claims brought against it in the normal course of 
business operations. Management of the Trust is not currently aware of any claims or actions that would materially 
affect the Trust’s reported financial position or results from operations. 
 
In the normal course of operations, management may also enter into certain types of contracts that require the Trust 
to indemnify parties against possible third party claims, particularly when these contracts relate to purchase and 
sale agreements. The terms of such contracts vary and generally a maximum is not explicitly stated; as such the 
overall maximum amount of the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe 
payments, if any, related to such contracts would have a material affect on the Trust’s reported financial position or 
results from operations. 
 
The Trust has letters of credit outstanding in the amount of approximately $5 million related to electricity 
infrastructure usage. These letters are provided by Harvest Operations’ lenders pursuant to the credit agreement 
[Note 8]. These letters expire throughout 2004 and 2005, and are expected to be renewed as required. 
 
Following is a summary of the Trust’s contractual obligations and commitments as at December 31, 2004: 
 

 Payments Due by Period 
($000’s) 2005 2006 – 2007 2008 – 2009 Thereafter Total 
Debt repayments (1)  75,519 - -     300,500 376,019 
Capital commitments 700 - - - 700 
Operating leases 400     2,869      2,869 956 7,094 
Total contractual obligations  76,619     2,869      2,869     301,456 383,813 
(1) Includes long-term and short-term debt. Assumes that the outstanding convertible debentures either exchange at the holders’ option for Units 
or are redeemed for Units at the Trust’s option. 
 
20. Reconciliation of the Consolidated Financial Statements to United States Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP which, in most 
respects, conforms to generally accepted accounting principles in U.S. GAAP. Any differences in accounting 
principles as they have been applied to the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not material except 
as described below. All items required for financial disclosure under U.S. GAAP are not noted.  
 
The application of U.S. GAAP would have the following effects on net income as reported: 
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 Year Ended December 31, 
  2004  2003 
     
Net income as reported $ 18,231 $ 15,516 

    
Adjustments    

Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments (f)  3,886  (9,345) 
Future income tax effect on unrealized loss on derivative    

financial instruments (f) (g)  (5,251)  3,952 
Future tax impact of deferred charges (f) (g)  2,885  - 
Interest on convertible debentures (d)  (5,223)  - 
Interest on equity bridge notes (d)  (1,070)  (870) 
Amortization of deferred financing charges (d)  (546)  - 
Non-cash general and administrative expenses (c)  1,455  (1,288) 

    
Net income under US GAAP before cumulative effect    

of change in accounting policy  14,367  7,965 
    
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy (b)  -  (304) 
    
Net income under US GAAP after cumulative effect of change    

in accounting policy  14,367  7,661 
    

Increase in redemption value of trust units under US GAAP (e)  (298,893)  (48,362) 
    

Net loss available to unitholders under US GAAP (e) $ (284,526) $ (40,701) 
    

Basic    
Net income under US GAAP before cumulative effect of    

change in accounting policy $ 0.57 $ 0.63 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy (b)  -  (0.02) 

Net income after the cumulative effect of change in accounting    
policy (before changes in redemption value of trust units  0.57  0.61 

Net loss available to unitholders per trust unit under    
US GAAP $ (11.24) $ (3.23) 

    
Diluted    

Net income under US GAAP before cumulative effect of change    
in accounting policy $ 0.54 $ 0.61 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy   (0.02) 
Net income after the cumulative effect of change in     

accounting policy (before changes in redemption value of trust units $ 0.54 $ 0.59 
Net loss available to unitholders per trust unit under    

U.S GAAP $ (11.24) $ (3.23) 
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The application of U.S. GAAP would have the following effect on the consolidated balance sheets as reported:  
 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 
 Canadian 

GAAP 
US 

GAAP 
Canadian 

GAAP 
US 

GAAP 
 
Assets 
Current portion of derivative contracts (f) $ 8,861 $ 8,861 $ - $ - 
Capital assets (a) 918,397 918,397 210,543 210,543 
Long term portion of derivative contracts (f) 3,710 3,710 - - 
Deferred charges (f) (d) 24,507 12,768 1,989 1,989 
Future taxes (g) - - 12,609 17,860 
     
Liabilities     
Derivative contracts (f) 27,927 27,927 - 12,468 
Deferred gains (f) 2,177 - - - 
Senior notes (i) 300,500 298,488   
Convertible debentures – liability (d) - 25,859 - - 
Equity bridge notes – liability (d) - - - 25,000 
Asset retirement obligation (b) 90,085 90,085 42,009 42,009 
Future taxes (f)(g) 34,671 31,786 - - 
     

Temporary equity (e) 
- 867,452 - 213,692 

     
Unitholders’ Equity     
Unitholders’ capital (e) $ 465,131 $ - $ 117,407 $ - 
Equity bridge notes (d) - - 25,000 - 
Convertible debentures (d) 24,696 - - - 
Exchangeable shares (e) 6,728 - - - 
Contributed surplus (c) - - 239 1,694 
Accumulated income 31,416 (370,005) 19,478 (85,479) 

 
(a) Under Canadian GAAP, the Trust performs an impairment test that limits the capitalized costs of its oil and 
natural gas assets to the discounted estimated future net revenue from proved and risked probable oil and natural gas 
reserves plus the cost of unproved properties less impairment, using forward prices. The discount rate used is equal 
to the Trust’s risk free interest rate. Under U.S. GAAP, entities using the full cost method of accounting for oil and 
natural gas activities perform an impairment test on each cost centre using discounted future net revenue from 
proved oil and natural gas reserves discounted at 10%. The prices used under the U.S. GAAP ceiling tests are those 
in effect at year end. There was no impairment under U.S. GAAP at December 31, 2004 or 2003. 
 
(b) Effective January 1, 2004, the Trust retroactively adopted the CICA Handbook standard for accounting for asset 
retirement obligations. This section is equivalent to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143 
for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2003. The transitional provisions between Canadian GAAP and 
U.S. GAAP differ however, as Canadian GAAP requires a restatement of comparative amounts whereas U.S. GAAP 
does not allow restatement.  
 
(c) During the year, the Trust modified the Trust Unit incentive plan to include a feature that allows participants to 
receive cash for the value of their Units at their sole option. As such, under Canadian GAAP the Trust now 
determines compensation expense based on the excess of the market price over the adjusted exercise price of all of 
the rights outstanding at the end of each reporting period and the expense is deferred and recognized in income over 
the vesting period of the rights, with a corresponding amount recorded to liabilities. After the rights have vested, 
compensation expense is recognized in income in the period in which a change in the market price of the Trust Units 
or the exercise price of the rights occurs. For the year ended December 31, 2003, under Canadian GAAP, the Trust 
used the fair value method to account for these rights. 
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For U.S. GAAP purposes, the Trust Unit incentive plan is a variable compensation plan as the exercise price of the 
rights is subject to downward revisions from time to time. Accordingly, compensation expense is determined using 
the same method as under Canadian GAAP for 2004. An adjustment is made to reflect compensation expense 
recorded under U.S. GAAP relating to rights issued in 2002 previously not expensed under Canadian GAAP. For the 
year ended December 31, 2003, an adjustment is also made for the difference between compensation expense using 
the fair value method and the intrinsic method used.  
 
(d) Under Canadian GAAP, the equity bridge notes and convertible debentures are classified as Unitholders' equity 
and the interest accrued and paid on the equity bridge notes and convertible debentures has been recorded as a 
reduction of accumulated income. Issue costs are netted against equity and interest expense is recorded as a 
financing activity in the statement of cash flows.  
 
Under U.S. GAAP, the equity bridge notes and convertible debentures are classified as long-term debt. Accordingly, 
an adjustment has been made to net income to reflect interest expense on both instruments under U.S. GAAP. Under 
U.S. GAAP the interest expense would be reported as a reduction to operating cash flows in the statement of cash 
flows. 
 
Issue costs related to the convertible debentures have been classified as deferred charges for U.S. GAAP and 
amortized into income. 
 
(e) Under the Trust Indenture, Trust Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the Unitholder for cash. Under 
U.S. GAAP, the amount included on the consolidated balance sheet for Unitholders’ Equity would be reduced by an 
amount equal to the redemption value of the Trust Units as at the balance sheet date. The same accounting treatment 
would be applicable to the exchangeable shares. The redemption value of the Trust Units and the exchangeable 
shares is determined with respect to the trading value of the Trust Units as at each balance sheet date, and the 
amount of the redemption value is classified as temporary equity. Increases, if any, in the redemption value during a 
period results in a charge to permanent equity and is reflected as a reduction in earnings available to Unitholders for 
the year. 
 
(f) Under U.S. GAAP, SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” requires that all 
derivative instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at fair 
value, and requires that changes in fair value be recognized currently in income unless specific hedge accounting 
criteria are met. U.S. GAAP requires that a company formally document, designate, and assess the effectiveness of 
derivative instruments before they can receive this accounting treatment. The Trust had not formally documented 
and designated all hedging relationships as at December 31, 2004 or December 31, 2003, and as such was not 
eligible for hedge accounting treatment. 
 
Upon adoption of AcG-13, the Trust has implemented fair value accounting effective January 1, 2004 under 
Canadian GAAP and had designated a portion of its derivative contracts as hedges. A difference does arise due to 
the adoption of fair value accounting under Canadian GAAP. Upon discontinuing hedge accounting a deferred 
charge or gain is recorded representing the fair value of the contract at that time. This difference is amortized over 
the term of the contract. During the year, the Trust discontinued hedge accounting for all derivative contracts under 
Canadian GAAP. Under U.S. GAAP there were no contracts designated as hedges. To the extent deferred charges 
and gains are recorded and amortized when hedge accounting was discontinued, there is a difference between 
Canadian and U.S. GAAP. 
 
(g) The Canadian GAAP liability method of accounting for income taxes is similar to the U.S. GAAP SFAS 109, 
“Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires the recognition of tax assets and liabilities for the expected future 
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Trust’s consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to 
U.S. GAAP, enacted tax rates are used to calculate future income tax, whereas Canadian GAAP uses substantively 
enacted rates. There are no differences for the year ended December 31, 2004 or the year ended December 31, 2003 
relating to tax rate differences. 
 
Upon adoption of fair value accounting for derivative contracts under Canadian GAAP, deferred charges and gains 
were set up when hedge accounting was discontinued. As there is no tax base relating to these amounts a temporary 
difference was created. This difference does not exist under U.S. GAAP as there are no deferred charges or gains 



26 EXHIBIT 99.2 

under U.S. GAAP. In addition, to the extent there were historical differences with respect to Canadian and U.S. 
GAAP due to derivative contract assets and liabilities, these amounts are now required to be eliminated as the 
balances of those accounts under Canadian and U.S. GAAP are now the same.  
 
At December 31, 2003, the difference relates to the recording of a derivative contract liability under U.S. GAAP and 
not under Canadian GAAP. 
 
(h) Unless otherwise noted, the consolidated statements of cash flows prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP 
conform in all material respects with U.S. GAAP, with the exception that Canadian GAAP allows for the 
presentation of a subtotal of cash flows from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital items 
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. This sub-total cannot be presented under U.S. GAAP. 
 
(i) Under Canadian GAAP, the discount on the senior notes has been recorded in deferred charges. Under U.S. 
GAAP, this amount is required to be applied against the senior notes balance.  
 
The following are standards and interpretations that have been issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASB") and the Trust has assessed the impact to be as follows: 
 
In December 2004, FASB issued statement 123R “Share Based Payments” that addresses the accounting for share-
based payment transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments 
of the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may be 
settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. The proposal eliminates the ability to account for share-based 
compensation transactions using APB 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and generally requires 
instead, that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. The effective date would be for the 
first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2005, for awards granted on or after the effective date. 
Management has not yet assessed the impact of this standard on its consolidated financial statements.  
 
In December 2004, FASB issued statement number 153 “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets – an amendment of 
APB Opinion No. 29”. This Statement amends Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of 
similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not 
have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the 
entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. Management does not expect this statement to 
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
 
Additional disclosures required under U.S. GAAP: 
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 
 

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003 
    
Components of accounts receivable    
Trade $ 14,743 $ 16,334 
Accruals  29,285 2,834 
 $ 44,028 $ 19,168 
    
Components of prepaid expenses    
Prepaid expenses $ 1,730 $ 232 
Funds on deposit  1,284 11,899 
 $ 3,014 $ 12,131 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of operations of Harvest Energy Trust should 
be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 
2004. In this MD&A, reference to "Harvest", "we", "us" or "our" refers to Harvest Energy Trust and all of its controlled entities on a 
consolidated basis. The information and opinions concerning our future outlook are based on information available at March 24, 2005. 
 
All references are to Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated. Tabular amounts are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise stated. 
Natural gas volumes are converted to barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE”) using the ratio of six thousand cubic feet (“6 mcf”) to one (1) 
barrel of oil (“bbl”). BOEs may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A BOE conversion ratio of 6 mcf:1 bbl is based on an 
energy equivalent conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalent at the wellhead. 
 
Certain Financial Reporting Measures 
We use certain financial reporting measures that are commonly used as benchmarks within the oil and natural gas industry. These 
measures include: "Cash Flow from Operations", "Net Debt", "Payout Ratio", "Net Operating Income" and "Operating Netbacks". 
These measures are not defined under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and should not be considered in 
isolation or as an alternative to conventional GAAP measures. Certain of these measures are not necessarily comparable to a similarly 
titled measure of another company or trust. When these measures are used, they are defined as “non-GAAP” and should be given 
careful consideration by the reader. 
 
Specifically, management uses Cash Flow from Operations as cash flow from operating activities before changes in non-cash working 
capital and settlement of asset retirement obligations. Under GAAP, this measure is defined as funds flow, and the accepted definition 
of cash flow from operating activities is net of changes in non-cash working capital and settlement of asset retirement obligations. 
Cash Flow from Operations as presented is not intended to represent an alternative to net earnings, cash flow from operating activities 
or other measures of financial performance calculated in accordance with Canadian GAAP. Management believes our usage of Cash 
Flow from Operations is a better indicator of our ability to generate cash flows from future operations. Net Debt, Payout Ratio, Net 
Operating Income, and Operating Netbacks are additional non-GAAP measures used extensively in the Canadian energy trust sector 
for comparative purposes. Net Debt includes total debt outstanding, any working capital deficit, the face value of convertible 
debentures outstanding, and equity bridge notes. (Note: for accounting purposes in 2004, convertible debentures and equity bridge 
notes were classified as equity and not debt. In 2005, accounting rule changes will result in these amounts being presented as debt.). 
Payout Ratio is the ratio of distributions to total Cash Flow from Operations. Net Operating Income is net revenue (gross revenue less 
royalties) less operating expenses. Operating Netbacks are always reported on a per BOE basis, and include gross revenue, royalties 
and operating expenses, net of any realized gains and losses on related derivative contracts. 
 
Forward-Looking Information 
This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements. The words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” 
“estimate” or “anticipate” and similar expressions, as well as future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,” and 
“could” often identify forward-looking statements. Specific forward looking statements contained in this MD&A include, among 
others, statements regarding our:  
• expected financial performance in future periods; 
• expected increases in revenue attributable to its development and production activities;  
• estimated capital expenditures for fiscal 2005 and subsequent periods; 
• competitive advantages and ability to compete successfully; 
• intention to continue adding value through drilling and exploitation activities; 
• emphasis on having a low cost structure; 
• intention to retain a portion of our cash flows after distributions to repay indebtedness and invest in further development of our 
properties; 
• reserve estimates and estimates of the present value of our future net cash flows; 
• methods of raising capital for exploitation and development of reserves; 
• factors upon which we will decide whether or not to undertake a development or exploitation project; 
• plans to make acquisitions and expected synergies from acquisitions made; 
• expectations regarding the development and production potential of our properties; and 
• treatment under government regulatory regimes. 
 
With respect to forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A, we have made assumptions regarding, among other things: 
• future oil and natural gas prices and differentials between light, medium and heavy oil prices; 
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• the cost of expanding our property holdings; 
• our ability to obtain equipment in a timely manner to carry out development activities; 
• our ability to market oil and natural gas successfully to current and new customers; 
• the impact of increasing competition; 
• our ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms; and 
• our ability to add production and reserves through our development and exploitation activities. 
 
Some of the risks that could affect our future results and could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-
looking statements include: 
• the volatility of oil and natural gas prices, including the differential between the price of light, medium and heavy oil; 
• the uncertainty of estimates of oil and natural gas reserves; 
• the impact of competition; 
• difficulties encountered during the drilling for and production of oil and natural gas; 
• difficulties encountered in delivering oil and natural gas to commercial markets; 
• foreign currency fluctuations; 
• the uncertainty of our ability to attract capital; 
• changes in, or the introduction of, new government regulations relating to the oil and natural gas business; 
• costs associated with developing and producing oil and natural gas; 
• compliance with environmental regulations; 
• liabilities stemming from accidental damage to the environment; 
• loss of the services of any of our senior management or directors; and 
• adverse changes in the economy generally. 
 
The information contained in this MD&A, including the information provided under the heading “Operational and Other Business 
Risks” identifies additional factors that could affect our operating results and performance. We urge you to carefully consider those 
factors. Our forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. Our forward looking 
statements are only made as of the date of this MD&A and we undertake no obligation to publicly update these forward-looking 
statements to reflect new information, subsequent events or otherwise. 
 
Overview and Strategy 
Harvest Energy Trust is an oil and natural gas royalty trust, which focuses on the operation of high quality mature properties. We have 
operations in four core areas: North Central Alberta, East Central Alberta, Southern Alberta and Southeast Saskatchewan.  
 
Since inception, we have followed a strategy designed for sustainability. We retain significant cash flows for reinvestment, and focus 
on realizing per Unit accretion in reserves, production, cash flow and net asset value when reviewing potential acquisitions and capital 
projects. 
 
2004 Financial and Operating Highlights 
The table below provides a summary of our financial and operating results for both the three and twelve month periods ended 
December 31, 2004 and 2003. Readers should note that the fourth quarter of 2004 was the first full operating quarter that included 
production from both of the significant acquisitions completed in 2004. Detailed commentary on individual items within this table is 
provided elsewhere in this MD&A. 
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FINANCIAL ($000s except where noted) 2004 2003 % Change 2004 2003 % Change
 (Restated) (6) (Restated) (6)

Revenue, net of royalties 107,446         33,575                   220% 277,095          102,939                169%
Cash flow from operations(5) 53,545           13,699                   291% 130,003          46,492                  180%

Per Trust Unit, basic(5) 1.31$             0.85$                     54% 5.13$              3.69$                    39%
Per Trust Unit, diluted(5) 1.27$             0.82$                     55% 4.91$              3.58$                    37%

Net income 12,536           5,495                     128% 18,231            15,516                  17%
Per Trust Unit, basic 0.29$             0.30$                     (3%) 0.47$              1.16$                    (59%)
Per Trust Unit, diluted 0.28$             0.29$                     (3%) 0.45$              1.13$                    (60%)

Distributions, declared 24,823           10,209                   143% 64,563            30,685                  110%
Distributions per Trust Unit, declared(7) 0.60$             0.60$                     0% 2.40$              2.40$                    0%

Payout ratio(2)(5) 46% 75% (39%) 50% 66% (24%)
Capital asset additions (excluding acquisitions) 8,873             4,334                     105% 42,662            27,209                  57%
Acquisitions -                    80,271                   (100%) 706,000          108,700                549%
Net debt (excluding derivative contracts)(3)(5) 429,671         78,555                   447% 429,671          78,555                  447%
Weighted average Trust Units

outstanding, basic(4) 40,937           16,175                   153% 25,324            12,591                  101%
Trust Units outstanding, end of period 41,788           17,109                   144% 41,788            17,109                  144%
Trust Units, fully diluted(8), end of period 45,088           18,174                   148% 45,088            18,174                  148%

OPERATING

Daily Sales Volumes(10)

Light oil (bbl/day) 12,228           4,079                     200% 7,911              1,028                    670%
Medium oil (bbl/day) 3,644             4,662                     (22%) 4,324              4,286                    1%
Heavy oil (bbl/day) 15,120           5,756                     163% 8,495              5,444                    56%
Natural gas liquids (bbl/day) 1,309             70                          1770% 471                 64                         636%
Natural gas (mcf/d) 28,338           1,744                     1525% 10,903            1,311                    732%

Total (BOE/d)(1) 37,024           14,858                   149% 23,019            11,040                  109%

OPERATING NETBACK(5) ($/BOE)
Revenues 37.77$           29.13$                   30% 39.33$            29.62$                  33%
Realized loss on derivative contracts (4.91)             (2.18)                     125% (6.47)              (4.67)                     39%
Royalites (6.23)             (4.66)                     34% (6.44)              (4.07)                     58%
Operating expense(9) (7.37)             (9.50)                     (22%) (8.48)              (8.94)                     (5%)
Operating netback(5) 19.26$           12.79$                   51% 17.94$            11.94$                  50%

Three months ended December 31 Twelve months ended December 31

 
(1) All calculations required to convert natural gas to a crude oil equivalent (BOE) have been made using a ratio of 6 mcf of natural gas to 1 barrel of crude oil. BOEs 
may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. The BOE conversion ratio is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner 
tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.  
(2) Ratio of distributions to cash flow from operations. 
(3) Net debt is bank debt, senior notes, equity bridge notes, convertible debentures and any working capital deficit excluding the current portion of derivative contracts 
and the accounting liability related to our Trust Unit incentive plan. Equity bridge notes and convertible debentures are reflected as equity on our consolidated balance 
sheet in accordance with Canadian GAAP. In 2005, GAPP will require these amounts to be reflected as debt. 
(4) Reflects both Trust Units and exchangeable shares. 
(5) These are non-GAAP measures; please refer to “Certain Financial Reporting Measures” in this MD&A. 
(6) Restated to reflect the adoption of new CICA recommendations to account for asset retirement obligations. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
(7) As if the Trust Unit was held throughout the period. 
(8) Fully diluted units differ from diluted units for accounting purposes. Fully diluted includes Trust Units outstanding as at December 31 plus the impact of the 
conversion of exercise of exchangeable shares, Trust Unit rights and convertible debentures if completed at December 31. 
(9) Includes realized gain on electricity derivative contracts of $0.18 and $0.24 for fourth quarter and full year 2004, respectively, and $0.26 and $0.39 for the same 
periods in 2003. 
(10) Harvest classifies its oil production as light, medium and heavy according to NI 51-101 guidance. 
 
2004 Highlights 
When reviewing our 2004 results, readers are reminded that the Storm acquisition took place on June 30, 2004, and the EnCana 
acquisition became effective on September 2, 2004. The combination of these two events significantly impacted our operations and 
financial results for the latter part of 2004 as well as comparability between quarters. 
 
• The Storm acquisition represented approximately 4,000 BOE/d of light oil and natural gas properties in the Red Earth area of North 
Central Alberta, for consideration of $192.2 million; 
• The EnCana acquisition of $526 million ($511.4 million after adjustments) for properties in East Central and Southern Alberta added 
approximately 19,000 BOE/d of production. Additionally, our reserve life index increased to 8 and we diversified our product mix by 
increasing our natural gas production weighting to approximately 13%; 
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• We successfully closed a financing of U.S.$250 million, 7-year 7 7/8% senior notes on October 14, 2004 creating additional 
financial flexibility and providing entry into the U.S. financial markets. The proceeds from the financing were used to substantially 
repay outstanding bank debt used to finance the EnCana acquisition; 
• We have successfully integrated the new North Central, East Central and Southern Alberta personnel and assets into our existing 
operations. Development and optimization work on all properties commenced immediately after the closing of each transaction. 
 
 
2004 Benchmark Performance and 2005 Outlook 
The table below provides a summary of our performance during 2004 against objectives identified in our 2003 annual report, and 
outlines our objectives for 2005. 
2004 Objective 2004 Performance 2005 Outlook 
Build on success achieved in 2003 by 
adding proved reserves and extending 
reserve life index (RLI). 
 

Through our internal capital 
development program, increased Total 
Proved reserves by 7.4 mmBOE, after 
adjusting for production. Corporate RLI 
extended to 8 years through 
development and acquisition. 
 

Continue to develop and maximize 
returns from our assets. 
 

Execute on accretive acquisitions that 
offer strategic fit, cost reductions, and 
improvement of portfolio quality. 
 

Completed Storm acquisition in June, 
increasing production at that time to 
approximately 19,000 BOE/d and RLI 
to 6.7. High netback production and 
light oil added to asset mix. Completed 
EnCana acquisition in September, 
increasing production in the fourth 
quarter to average approximately 
37,000 BOE/d. High netback 
production and natural gas added to 
asset portfolio. 
 

Continue to evaluate acquisition 
opportunities, and capitalize on those 
where value can be added. If acquisition 
market is not accessible, exploit 
existing inventory of opportunities for 
development. 
 

Invest $35 million of capital in 
development program. 
 

Invested approximately $43 million in 
development capital through the year, 
recording Proved plus Probable Finding 
& Development (F&D) costs of 
$4.15/BOE and Total Proved F&D 
costs of $5.42/BOE. 
 

Invest approximately $75 million in 
capital development. 

Maintain average production between 
15,000 and 15,500 BOE/d. 
 

2004 production averaged 23,019 
BOE/d; fourth quarter 2004 production 
averaged 37,024 BOE/d. 
 

Production to average between 34,000 
and 36,000 BOE/d. 
 

Attain average royalty rate between 15 
and 17% and operating expense per 
BOE between $10.00 and $10.50. 
 

2004 royalty rate averaged 16.4%, 
while operating expenses per BOE 
averaged approximately $8.48 for the 
full year and $7.37 in the fourth quarter. 
 

Maintain average royalty rate between 
15 and 17%, and maintain operating 
expenses per BOE between $7.75 and 
$8.50. 
 

Pay $0.20 per Unit per month 
distribution through 2004. 
 

2004 distributions totaled $2.40 per 
Trust Unit. 
 

Maintain consistent $0.20 distribution 
level through 2005. 
 

 
Summary of Historical Quarterly Results 
The table and discussion below highlight our performance for the previous eight quarters on select measures. Our Initial Public 
Offering took place in December of 2002. 
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Financial Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Revenue, net of royalties 107,446$       85,424$         44,752$         39,473$         33,575$        24,706$        21,350$        23,308$        
Operating expense3 (25,113)         (18,993)         (13,600)         (13,674)         (12,984)         (9,661)           (6,596)           (6,804)           
Net operating income1 82,333$         66,431$         31,152$         25,799$         20,591$        15,045$        14,754$        16,504$        

Net income (loss) 12,536           5,166             1,594             (1,065)           5,495            5,488            1,064            3,469            
Per Trust Unit, basic2 0.29               0.07               0.02               (0.13)             0.30              0.44              0.09              0.33              
Per Trust Unit, diluted2 0.28               0.07               0.02               (0.13)             0.29              0.43              0.09              0.32              

Cash flow from operations1 53,545           44,459           17,160           14,839           13,699          16,758          9,546            6,489            
Per Trust Unit, basic1,2 1.31               1.50               0.99               0.87               0.85              1.35              0.84              0.62              
Per Trust Unit, diluted1,2 1.27               1.47               0.96               0.84               0.82              1.31              0.82              0.60              

Sales Volumes

Crude oil (bbl/d) 30,992           22,397           14,775           14,626           14,497          11,054          9,371            8,034            
Natural gas liquids (bbl/d) 1,309             377                141                50                  70                 77                 67                 43                 
Natural gas (mcf/d) 28,338           11,909           2,249             915                1,744            1,453            1,161            875               
Total (BOE/d) 37,024           24,759           15,291           14,829           14,858          11,373          9,632            8,223            

20032004
(Restated - Refer to note 3 of the consolidated financial statements)

 
(1) This is a non-GAAP measure as referred to under “Certain Financial Reporting Measures”. 
(2) The sum of the interim periods does not equal the total per year amount as there were large fluctuations in the weighted average number of Trust Units outstanding 
in each individual quarter. 
(3) Reflects the gains and losses on electricity derivative contracts. 
 
 
Net revenues and net operating income have trended higher since the first quarter of 2003, with significant increases occurring in the 
third and fourth quarters of 2004. The revenue increase since 2003 is primarily attributable to increasing production volumes and the 
strong commodity price environment during 2004. The two significant acquisitions completed in 2004, which closed in June and 
September, both contributed to the significant increases in third and fourth quarter production volumes, revenue and cash flow.  
 
Net income reflects both cash and non-cash items. The non-cash items, including depletion, depreciation and accretion (DD&A), 
foreign exchange, unrealized gain or loss on derivatives, Trust Unit right compensation expense and future income taxes can cause net 
income to vary significantly. However, these items do not impact the cash flow available for distribution to Unitholders, and therefore 
management believes net income may be a less meaningful measure of performance for a royalty trust such as Harvest. Net income 
(loss) has not reflected the same trend as net revenues or cash flows due mainly to the inclusion of unrealized mark-to-market gains 
and losses on derivative contracts. 
 
Cash flow from operations is a key measure for a royalty trust as it represents the key source of cash distributions for Unitholders. 
Excluding the substantial non-recurring foreign exchange gain realized in the third quarter of 2003, our cash flow from operations has 
demonstrated a steady upward trend. Cash flows can be impacted by factors outside of management’s control such as commodity 
prices and currency exchange rates. We strive to mitigate the impact of these factors by using hedging (sometimes referred to as 
‘derivatives’ or ‘derivative contracts’ herein) to fix future commodity prices and currency exchange rates on a portion of our 
transactions. 
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 2003 2004 
 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Cash Flow From Operations ($millions) 6.5 9.5 16.8 13.7 14.8 17.2 44.5 53.5 
 
 2003 2004 
 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Operating Netback ($/BOE) 10.72 12.71 11.01 12.79 12.41 13.59 21.94 19.26 
 
Summary of Historical Annual Results 
 

($ millions except per Trust Unit amounts) 2004                        2003                        2002                        
(restated) (restated)

Net revenue 277.1$                     102.9$                     20.0$                       
Net income 18.2                         15.5                         4.8                           

Per Trust Unit, basic 0.47                         1.16                         3.47                         
Per Trust Unit, fully diluted 0.45                         1.13                         3.27                         

Total assets 1,046.3                    256.4                       108.4                       
Total long-term financial liabilities 300.5                       -                           -                           
Distributions per Trust Unit, declared ($/Unit) 2.40$                      2.40$                       0.20$                       

Year ended December 31

 
 
Revenues 
 

2004              2003              % Change 2004             2003             % Change
Oil and natural gas sales ($/BOE) 37.77$           29.13$           30% 39.33$          29.62$          33%
Royalty expense, net ($/BOE) (6.23)             (4.66)             34% (6.44)             (4.07)             58%
Net revenues ($/BOE) 31.54$           24.47$           29% 32.89$          25.55$          29%

Net revenues ($millions) 107.4$           33.6$             220% 277.1$         102.9$          169%

Three months ended December 31 Year ended December 31

 
Our net revenue is impacted by production volumes, commodity prices, currency exchange rates and royalty rates. As a result of the 
acquisitions we completed during 2004, and the rising crude oil price environment, our revenues in the three and twelve month periods 
ending December 31, 2004 increased substantially over the same periods in 2003. Despite this, the increases in our fourth quarter 2004 
revenues were slightly offset by widening heavy oil differentials, and a strengthening Canadian dollar. Changes in realized prices, 
volumes and royalty rates are discussed below. The impact of our hedging activities on current and future results is discussed under 
“Derivative Contracts”. 
 
Sales Volumes  
The average daily sales volumes by product were as follows:  

2004              2003            % Change 2004            2003              % Change
Light oil (Bbl/d) 12,228           4,079           200% 7,911           1,028             670%
Medium oil (Bbl/d) 3,644             4,662           -22% 4,324           4,286             1%
Heavy oil (Bbl/d) 15,120           5,756           163% 8,495           5,444             56%
Total oil (Bbl/d) 30,992           14,497         114% 20,730         10,758           93%
Natural gas liquids (Bbl/d) 1,309             70                1770% 471              64                  636%
Total liquids (Bbl/d) 32,301           14,567         122% 21,201         10,822           96%
Natural gas (mcf/d) 28,338           1,744           1525% 10,903         1,311             732%
Total oil equivalent (BOE/d) 37,024           14,858         149% 23,019         11,040           109%

Three Months Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

 
Sales volumes averaged 37,024 BOE/d in the fourth quarter of 2004, compared to 14,858 BOE/d for the same period in 2003. The 
fourth quarter production breakdown is representative of our new commodity mix following the Storm and EnCana transactions. Full 
year 2004 average production of 23,019 BOE/d was 109% higher than the 11,040 BOE/d averaged in 2003. The higher average 
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production realized in 2004 compared to 2003 is primarily attributable to the two significant acquisitions of Storm and the EnCana 
properties. In addition, the natural gas component of our production was approximately 13% in the fourth quarter, up from only 2% in 
the fourth quarter of 2003.  In October 2003, we acquired approximately 5,500 BOE/d of production, the full impact of which was not 
realized until 2004. 
 
For 2005, we anticipate production volumes to average between 34,000 and 36,000 BOE/day. 
 
We do not intentionally manage to a specific production mix. The production mix is a result of our strategy of targeting accretive 
acquisitions and capitalizing on opportunities, rather than targeting specific commodity types. The product mix changed significantly 
in 2004 with the addition of light oil from the Storm acquisition and natural gas from the EnCana acquisition. 
 
 2003 2004 
 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Quarterly Average Production Volumes 
(BOE/d) 

8,223 9,632 1,1373 14,858 14,829 15,291 24,759 37,024 

 
Realized Commodity Prices 
The following table provides a breakdown of our 2004 and 2003 average commodity prices by product before realized losses on 
derivative contracts. 
 

Product Prices 2004                2003                % Change 2004                2003                % Change
Light oil ($/bbl) 53.64$             35.56$             51% 48.70$             35.56$             37%
Medium oil ($/bbl) 35.55               30.13               18% 38.78               32.18               21%
Heavy oil ($/bbl) 28.73               24.92               15% 31.11               27.34               14%
Natural gas liquids ($/bbl) 33.19               29.18               14% 41.10               29.92               37%
Natural gas ($/mcf) 5.68                 6.01                 (5%) 6.30                 6.70                 (6%)

Total ($/BOE) 37.77$            29.13$             30% 39.33$            29.62$             33%

Realized derivative contract
   losses ($/BOE)1 (4.91)$              (2.18)$              125% (6.47)$              (4.67)$              39%
Net realized price ($/BOE) 32.86$            26.95$             22% 32.86$            24.95$             32%

Three months ended December 31 Year ended December 31

 
(1) These amounts are included in gains and losses on derivative contracts on the income statement. 
 
In 2004, our revenues were impacted by realized losses on oil price swaps and collars that were implemented in 2002 and 2003. These 
hedge contracts capped our ability to realize upside on West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) price movements. The majority of these 
types of oil price derivative contracts expired at the end of 2004. Consequently, we will be able to realize net prices closer to spot 
price levels in 2005. At the time of writing, we had entered into oil price derivative contracts on approximately 75% of our 2005 net 
crude oil production, and approximately 40% of our 2006 net crude oil production. The majority of the 2005 and 2006 commodity 
derivative contracts that we have in place provide a fixed crude oil floor price, while retaining the ability to participate in upward price 
appreciation. Examples of such contracts include ‘indexed puts’ and ‘participating swaps’, and additional information on these and 
other commodity derivative contracts can be found in the “Derivative Contracts” section of this MD&A. 
 

Benchmarks 2004           2003           % Change 2004           2003           % Change

West Texas Intermediate crude oil (US$ per barrel) 48.28          31.18          54.8% 41.40          30.99          33.6%
Edmonton light crude oil ($ per barrel) 58.58          41.05          42.7% 53.20          43.77          21.5%
Lloyd blend crude oil ($ per barrel) 35.00          27.31          28.2% 36.30          31.48          15.3%
Bow river blend crude oil ($ per barrel) 35.66          28.17          26.6% 37.19          32.39          14.8%
AECO natural gas ($ per mcf) 7.51            5.96            26.0% 6.80            6.67            1.9%

Canadian / U.S. dollar exchange rate 0.819          0.760          7.8% 0.770          0.713          8.0%

Three Months Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31 
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Through 2004, the benchmark price of WTI crude oil rose steadily, opening the year at U.S.$32.40, hitting a high of U.S.$55.67 on 
October 25th, and closing the year at U.S.$43.45. These historically high prices for crude oil can be attributed to strong demand 
growth, particularly in China, and economic expansion in the U.S. OPEC was slow to respond to the demand increases and worldwide 
inventories dropped to near all-time lows measured by days of demand cover. This increased demand on OPEC left the cartel with 
little room for spare capacity, which caused further uncertainty and extreme price volatility. This tight supply/demand balance was 
compounded by continued unrest in the Middle East, fears of terrorism interrupting the supply chain, and concerns regarding tight 
refining capacity. In 2005, we anticipate these strong global fundamentals to be sustained, resulting in another robust environment for 
WTI prices. However, we see the potential for periods of weakness and the possibility for reduced economic growth in key demand 
markets such as the U.S. having a more serious impact on world oil prices. 
 
Given Harvest’s production mix, which includes medium and heavy crude oil, the benefits of high WTI prices were tempered due to 
wider medium and heavy crude price differentials in 2004. Heavy differentials reached a high in the fourth quarter of U.S.$19.79 per 
barrel below WTI for Lloyd Blend crude, a benchmark for medium and heavy crude oil prices in Western Canada. In an environment 
of rising WTI prices, it is expected that differentials will widen, but this effect was exacerbated in the fourth quarter because of 
stagnation in the heavy refined product market and an increase in the supply of heavy sour crude from OPEC. As a result of this 
widening differential, our realized price on medium and heavier grade crude oil was constricted. Through 2004, this impact was 
mitigated by 4,250 BOE/d of hedges on the heavy crude differential. We currently have no differential hedges beyond 2004. We will 
continue to monitor the market with a view to reducing the impact of changing differentials on realized prices. The market for heavy 
oil price financial derivatives is not well established and we may need to enter into other forms of transactions to achieve this 
objective. Our acquisitions in 2004 have helped reduce our exposure to heavy oil differentials by diversifying our commodity mix. 
 
In addition to hedging, we also strive to maximize the price received for our heavy oil production by marketing into streams that offer 
better pricing, using our natural gas liquids production as a hedge against the cost of condensate and utilizing heated pipelines to 
reduce blending requirements. If the price of WTI remains high in 2005, we expect differentials to remain wide versus historical 
levels, but narrow from those experienced in the fourth quarter of 2004. 
 
In 2004, the Canadian dollar continued its strengthening trend, which began in 2002. This dampened the revenue gains from the rising 
WTI price for Canadian oil producers. The Canadian dollar reached a twelve year high on November 26, 2004 of $0.8493. This 
compares to the year end 2003 level of $0.7738 and the December 31, 2004 level of $0.8308. As a result of our U.S. dollar 
denominated senior notes, which were issued in October 2004, we have a partial natural hedge against currency exchange rates. In 
addition to this natural hedge, we have hedged U.S.$8.3 million per month through 2005, with a floor at U.S.$0.8333. The long term 
outlook for the Canadian dollar remains robust, as Canada continues to experience strong demand for its commodities.  
 
After completing the acquisition of properties in East Central and Southern Alberta in September of 2004, our natural gas weighting 
increased from approximately 2% to approximately 13% of total production. As a result, the impact of natural gas prices has become 
more significant to us. Natural gas demand growth remains strong, particularly for electricity generation. Recently the price has 
become more closely related to oil pricing as the effects of fuel switching to high sulphur fuel oil now set a floor, rather than a ceiling, 
on the price of natural gas. During 2004, the price of natural gas at AECO experienced volatility due primarily to storage and weather 
related issues, and reached a peak of $8.19/GJ on October 27th and a low of $4.60/GJ on November 19th. It is expected that natural 
gas prices will remain healthy in 2005 with the potential for considerable price spikes should WTI prices remain strong and primary 
markets experience either a warm summer or a cold winter season. We have not, as yet, hedged any of our natural gas price exposure. 
 
We anticipate that our gas production as a percentage of total production may decline slightly in 2005 as the 2005 capital budget does 
not include a proportionate amount for natural gas property development. 
 
Royalties 
We pay Crown, freehold or overriding royalties to the owners of mineral rights from which production is generated. These royalties 
vary for each property and product and our Crown royalties are based on a sliding scale dependent on production volumes and 
commodity prices. In certain situations, such as with some heavy oil production, the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board grants royalty 
‘holidays’, effectively eliminating royalties on a specific well or group of wells. 
 
For the three months ended December 31, 2004, our net royalties as a percentage of revenue were 16.5% ($21.2 million), compared to 
16.0% ($6.4 million) in the same period in 2003, despite stronger commodity prices. The small increase in the royalty rate in the 
fourth quarter 2004 compared with the same period in 2003, relative to the 30% increase in net prices, is attributable to the lower 
royalty rate of the properties acquired in September. 
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For the full year 2004, our net royalties as a percentage of revenue were 16.4% ($54.2 million), compared to 13.8% ($16.4 million) in 
2003. The higher royalty rate for full year 2004 compared to 2003 is primarily due to the higher royalty rates on the North Central 
Alberta properties and the Southeast Saskatchewan properties, which were acquired in the second quarter of 2004 and the fourth 
quarter of 2003, respectively. For 2005, we are anticipating our royalty rate as a percentage of net revenues to be between 15 and 17%. 
 
Operating Expense 
 

($ per BOE) 2004            2003            % Change 2004           2003           % Change
Operating expense 7.55$           9.76$           (23%) 8.72$          9.33$          (7%)
Realized gains on electricity
     derivative contracts (0.18)            (0.26)            (31%) (0.24)           (0.39)           (38%)
Net operating expense 7.37$           9.50$           (22%) 8.48$          8.94$          (5%)

Three months ended December 31 Year ended December 31

 
 
Our operating expenses (before the impact of realized gains on electricity derivative contracts) for the three and twelve month periods 
ending December 31, 2004 were $25.7 million ($7.55/BOE) and $73.4 million ($8.72/BOE), respectively. For the same respective 
periods in 2003 (before the impact of realized gains on electricity derivative contracts), operating expenses were $13.3 million 
($9.76/BOE) and $37.6 million ($9.33/BOE). The decrease in 2004 compared to 2003 is primarily due to the acquisition of lower 
operating cost properties from Storm and EnCana, slightly offset by the acquisition of the higher operating cost properties in Southeast 
Saskatchewan in the fourth quarter of 2003. The 2004 operating cost figures are in line with our previous guidance issued in mid-
2004. 
 
To help control operating expenses, a portion of our capital spending program is directed towards operating cost reduction initiatives 
such as water disposal, fluid handling and power reduction projects. We strive to minimize operating costs, which contributes to 
stronger netbacks, and can extend reserve life by making the extraction of reserves more economical later in the life of the property. 
 
Electricity costs represent a significant portion of our operating costs, so efforts are constantly focused on ways to reduce electricity 
costs. In 2004, approximately 37% of our operating expenses related to electricity consumption, compared to approximately 60% in 
2003. This reduction is a result of two factors. We handle significant volumes of water on our East Central Alberta oil production and 
processing and disposing of the water requires a large amount of electricity. In 2004, as part of our ongoing initiatives to control costs, 
we found a more efficient method to dispose of produced water, by injecting it into a different reservoir at vacuum, and reduced power 
costs in this core area. In addition, a large portion of the new properties acquired in 2004 do not require as much electricity in relation 
to other operating costs. 
 
During 2004, monthly electricity costs varied from $42.46 per megawatt hour (MWh) to $67.13/MWh. Through the application of 
electricity hedges, our exposure to volatile and rising costs was tempered. Alberta is a deregulated market and electricity prices are 
expected to remain volatile through 2005 and into 2006. We continue to mitigate this risk through hedging and are working on a 
variety of site optimization opportunities to minimize power consumption. We anticipate realizing further benefits from our electricity 
hedges in 2005 and 2006. Approximately 85% and 70% of our estimated Alberta electricity usage for 2005 and 2006 are hedged at an 
average price of $47.50/MWh. This hedging activity should keep our 2005 electricity costs close to levels experienced in 2004, with 
operating costs in 2005 expected to average between $7.75/BOE and $8.50/BOE. 
 

Benchmark Price 2004             2003             % Change 2004             2003             % Change
Alberta Power Pool electricity

price ($ per MWh) 54.94$          54.77$          0.3% 54.59$         62.99$          (13%)            

Three Months Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31 
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General and Administrative (G&A) Expense 

($millions except per BOE) 2004            2003            % Change 2004           2003           % Change
G&A 3.3$             2.1$             57% 8.6$            4.1$            110%
  Per BOE ($/BOE) 0.98             1.50             (35%) 1.02            1.02            0%
Unit right compensation expense 10.6             0.1               10500% 11.4            0.2              5600%
  Per BOE ($/BOE) 3.11             0.15             1973% 1.35            0.06            2150%
Total G&A 13.9$           2.2$             532% 20.0$          4.3$            365%
  Per BOE ($/BOE) 4.09$           1.65$           148% 2.37$         1.08$          119%

Three months ended December 31 Year ended December 31

 
The majority of our G&A expenses are related to salaries and other staffing costs. The portion of G&A charged against income in the 
fourth quarter of 2004 totaled $13.9 million ($4.09/BOE) compared to $2.2 million ($1.65/BOE) for the fourth quarter of 2003. For 
the twelve month period ended December 31, 2004, G&A expense totaled $20.0 million ($2.37/BOE) compared to $4.3 million 
($1.08/BOE) for the same period in 2003. 
 
The increase in G&A on a per BOE basis of 148% in the fourth quarter of 2004 compared to the same period in 2003 is the result of 
unit right compensation expense and annual bonuses paid and accrued for 2004.  
 
A modification to our Unit Incentive Rights Plan in the fourth quarter of 2004 resulted in a prospective change in accounting for unit 
appreciation rights (UARs). In previous quarters, UARs were valued at the date they were granted using a mathematical option 
valuation model and an expense was charged to G&A based on that valuation. Following the prospective accounting change, we now 
value vested UARs at the difference between exercise price and market price at each reporting period end to determine the related 
liability at the end of the period. Changes in the assumptions used in determining this liability, such as our Trust Unit price, the 
exercise price and the number of UARs vested at each accounting period will cause this liability to fluctuate and the difference is 
reflected as expense on the consolidated statement of income. For the fourth quarter of 2004, this non-cash amount in G&A accounted 
for $2.57/BOE.  
 
In addition, approximately $1.8 million of UARs exercised and settled for cash in the fourth quarter were charged to income. Annual 
bonuses paid and accrued impacted the fourth quarter by approximately $0.28 per BOE. In 2005, we expect cash G&A expenses to 
average between $0.90-$1.00 on a per BOE basis. 
 
Interest Expense 

($millions) 2004 2003 % Change 2004 2003 % Change
Interest on short term debt 3.7$                2.2$                68% 9.4$            5.6$            68%
Interest on long term debt 5.5                  -                  -                  5.5              -              -              
Total interest expense 9.2$                2.2$                318% 14.9$         5.6$            166%

Three months ended December  31 Year ended December  31

 
 
Interest expense in the three and twelve month periods ended December 31, 2004 was higher than in the same periods in 2003, 
primarily due to higher average debt balances resulting from the property acquisitions completed in the last half of 2004. Interest 
expense will be higher in 2005 than in the full year 2004 for this same reason. In addition, due to changes in generally accepted 
accounting principles, our convertible debentures will be reflected as debt, rather than equity, in 2005. This will result in interest on 
our convertible debentures being reflected in interest on long-term debt and reflected in net income. 
 
Interest expense reflects the interest accrued on our outstanding bank debt and senior notes as well as amortization of related financing 
costs. Interest on our bank debt is levied at the prime rate plus 0 to 2.25% depending on our debt to cash flow ratio. Our outstanding 
convertible debentures have fixed interest rates at 9% for the first series (issued in January 2004) and 8% for the second series (issued 
in August 2004). The large number of conversions of convertible debentures during 2004 has reduced the balance of both series, and 
will result in lower interest expense on these debentures in 2005 than 2004. We issued long-term U.S. dollar denominated senior notes 
in October 2004, which bear interest at 7 7/8% and mature on October 15, 2011. Issuing the senior notes enabled us to repay our bank 
bridge loan and a significant portion of the senior credit facility balance incurred with the acquisition of properties in September. 
Undertaking the long term senior note issue provides us with a natural hedge against fluctuations in currency exchange rates, increased 
financial flexibility and access to the U.S. capital markets. 
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Depletion, Depreciation and Accretion Expense 

($millions except per BOE) 2004            2003            % Change 2004           2003           % Change
Depletion and depreciation 44.7$           9.2$             386% 88.8$          29.4$          202%
Depletion of capitalized asset 

retirement costs 3.8               1.6               138% 9.8              4.5              118%
Accretion on asset

retirement obligation 1.3               0.7               86% 4.2              1.8              133%
Total depletion, depreciation

and accretion 49.8$           11.5$           333% 102.8$        35.7$          188%
Per BOE ($/BOE) 14.62$         8.41$           74% 12.20$       8.86$          38%

Three months ended December 31 Year ended December 31

 
 
In the fourth quarter of 2004, our overall depletion, depreciation and accretion (DD&A) rate per BOE is higher compared to the same 
period in 2003, primarily due to the acquisitions made in 2004. The higher DD&A rate reflects the higher value netback for the 
acquired properties. 
 
Foreign Exchange Gain 
Foreign exchange gains and losses are attributable to the effect of changes in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. 
dollar on our U.S. dollar denominated senior notes and any U.S. dollar deposits and cash balances. For the year ended December 31, 
2004, a foreign exchange gain of $7.1 million compares to a foreign exchange gain of $4.4 million in 2003. The higher gain in 2004 
was primarily driven by the strengthening of the Canadian dollar to the U.S. dollar during the period the senior notes were 
outstanding. 
 
Derivative Contracts 
All of our hedging activities are carried out pursuant to policies approved by the Board of Directors of Harvest Operations Corp. 
Management intends to facilitate stable, long-term monthly distributions by reducing the impact of volatility in commodity prices. As 
part of our risk management policy, management utilizes a variety of derivative instruments (including swaps, options and collars) to 
manage commodity price, foreign currency and interest rate exposures. These instruments are commonly referred to as ‘hedges’ but 
may not receive hedge treatment for accounting purposes. Management also enters into electricity price and heat rate based derivatives 
to assist in maintaining stable operating costs. We reduce our exposure to credit risk associated with these financial instruments by 
only entering into transactions with financially sound, credit worthy counterparties. 
 
When there is a high degree of correlation between the price movements in a derivative financial instrument and the item designated 
as being ‘hedged’ and management documents the effectiveness of this relationship, we may employ hedge accounting. Effective 
January 1, 2004, we implemented CICA Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships” (AcG-13), which addresses the 
identification, designation and effectiveness of financial contracts for the purpose of applying hedge accounting. Under this guideline, 
financial derivative contracts must be designated to the underlying revenue or expense stream that they are intended to hedge, and then 
tested to ensure they remain sufficiently effective in order to continue hedge accounting. As of October 1, 2004, we ceased to apply 
hedge accounting to our derivative contracts. As a result, from October 1, 2004 all of our derivatives are marked-to-market with the 
resulting gain or loss reflected in earnings for the reporting period. The mark-to-market valuation represents the amount that would be 
required to settle the contract on the period end date. Collectively our contracts had a mark-to-market unrealized non-cash loss 
position on the balance sheet of $15.4 million as at December 31, 2004. Please refer to Note 16 in the consolidated financial 
statements for further information.  
 
For 2004, we recorded a realized loss on commodity derivative contracts of $52.4 million, and an unrealized loss of $11.3 million. The 
realized loss portion reflects the revenue lost due to the derivative contracts in effect during that period. In 2003, we recorded a 
hedging loss of $18.9 million. Derivative contract losses in 2005, assuming similar commodity price levels, will be smaller than those 
experienced in 2004 as the volume of production hedged with swaps and collars with price ceilings has diminished. 
 
Deferred Charges and Deferred Gains 
The deferred charges asset balance on the balance sheet is comprised of two main components: deferred financing charges and 
deferred assets related to the discontinuation of hedge accounting. The deferred financing charges relate primarily to the issuance of 
the senior notes and bank debt and are amortized over the life of the debt. On the initial adoption of AcG-13, we recorded a deferred 
charge of $5.5 million, relating to the contracts not qualifying for hedge accounting at the time of adoption. 
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We discontinued the use of hedge accounting for all of our derivative financial instruments effective October 1, 2004. For contracts 
where hedge accounting had previously been applied, a deferred charge of $20.2 million and a deferred gain of $2.5 million was 
recorded equal to the fair value of the contracts at the time hedge accounting was discontinued, and a corresponding amount was 
recorded as a derivative contracts asset or liability. The deferred amount is recognized in income in the period in which the underlying 
transaction is recognized. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2004, $14.9 million of the deferred charge and $350,000 of the deferred gain has been amortized and 
recorded in gains and losses on derivative contracts. At December 31, 2004, $10.8 million has been recorded as a deferred charge, 
with $2.2 million recorded as a deferred gain related to derivative contracts. 
 
Goodwill 
Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the fair value for accounting 
purposes of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of that acquired business. In June 2004, we completed a Plan of Arrangement with 
Storm Energy Ltd., and acquired certain oil and natural gas producing properties in North Central Alberta for total consideration of 
$192.2 million. This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase price method, and resulted in Harvest recording goodwill 
of $43.8 million in 2004. This goodwill balance will be assessed annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances occur that would reasonably be expected to reduce the fair value of the acquired business to a level below its carrying 
amount. 
 
Future Income Taxes 
Future income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of our 
corporate operating subsidiaries for financial reporting purposes and the related income tax balances. Future income taxes arise, for 
example, as depletion and depreciation expense recorded against capital assets differs from claims under related tax pools. Future 
taxes also arise when tax pools associated with assets acquired are different from the purchase price recorded for accounting purposes. 
While we realized a recovery of future income taxes during the year, the overall future tax liability on the balance sheet increased due 
to the future income taxes booked on the acquisition of Storm Energy Ltd. (described previously under “Goodwill”). 
 
We recorded future income tax expense of $3.6 million for the three month period ended December 31, 2004, and a recovery of $4.9 
million for the three months ended December 31, 2003. Future income tax recoveries for the twelve month periods ended December 
31, 2004 and 2003 were $10.4 million and $9.0 million, respectively. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO) 
Effective January 1, 2004, we adopted CICA Handbook Section 3110 “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. In connection 
with a property acquisition or development expenditure, we will record the fair value of the ARO as a liability in the year in which an 
obligation to reclaim and restore the related asset is incurred. Our ARO costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the 
assets, and are depleted and depreciated over our estimated net proved reserves. Once the initial ARO is measured, it must be adjusted 
at the end of each period to reflect the passage of time as well as changes in the estimated future cash flows that underlie the 
obligation.  
 
Our asset retirement obligation has increased by $48.1 million in 2004 mainly due to the acquisitions of the North Central, East 
Central and Southern Alberta assets during the year. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Our drilling and operational enhancement programs, as well as current financial commitments, are expected to be financed from cash 
flow from operations (see “Certain Financial Reporting Measures” in this MD&A). Our cash distributions to Unitholders are financed 
solely from cash flow from operations. In 2004, our distribution payout ratio of 50% (calculated by dividing distributions to 
Unitholders into cash flow from operations) resulted in significant free cash flow available for our capital expenditure programs and 
debt repayment. Management anticipates sufficient cash flow from operations in 2005 to be available for the planned capital 
development program of $75 million, expected distributions of $0.20 per Unit per month and to repay a portion of outstanding bank 
debt. Given our significant amount of oil price hedges in place, management believes cash flows in 2005 will exceed cash 
distributions and budgeted capital expenditures under most WTI price scenarios. 
 
Should commodity prices stay strong, heavy oil differentials narrow and the Canadian dollar stabilize, we should have sufficient cash 
flow to repay a significant portion of our outstanding bank debt by the end of 2005. It is also important to note that to the extent our 
Unitholders elect to receive distributions in the form of Trust Units rather than cash under our Distribution Reinvestment plan (DRIP), 
this further reduces net cash outlays. During 2004, DRIP participation was approximately 21%. 
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 2003 2004 
 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Payout Ratio (%) 93 73 45 75 69 64 41 46
 
The table below provides an analysis of our debt structure, including some key debt ratios. We believe that the current capital structure 
is appropriate given our low payout ratio and the significant hedges in place. We intend to use cash flow after distributions and capital 
expenditures to repay bank debt. 
 

($ millions) 2004                        2003                        % Change
Bank debt 75.5$                       63.3$                       19%
Senior notes 300.5                       -                           -                           
Working capital deficit (surplus) excluding bank debt2 27.8                         (9.8)                          -384%
Equity bridge notes -                           25.0                         -                           
Convertible debentures 25.9                         -                           -                           
Net debt obligations 429.7$                     78.5$                       447%

Fourth quarter cash flow annualized 214.2$                     54.8$                       291%
Trailing net debt to cash flow (times)1 2.0                           1.4                           43%

Year ended December 31

 
(1) Reflects realized hedging losses which were significant in the fourth quarter given the nature of our oil price hedges, which were primarily collars and swaps. Our 
hedges in 2005 are primarily instruments which do not place a cap on WTI price realizations. 
(2) Excludes current portion of derivative contracts assets and liabilities and Trust Unit incentive plan liability. 
 
From time to time we may require additional external financing, in the form of either debt or equity, to further our business plan of 
maintaining production and reserves through acquisitions and capital expenditures. Our 2005 capital expenditure budget is likely not 
sufficient to maintain current production levels, but our cash flow from operations is expected to be at least sufficient to pay our 
distributions to Unitholders and fund our capital spending program. We strive to maintain financial flexibility that will enable us to 
capitalize on acquisition opportunities as they arise or increase our capital spending budget. In financing any new acquisitions, we will 
likely access both the debt and equity markets in appropriate amounts so as to maintain a supportable capital structure. We target debt 
to cash flow between 1.0 to 1.5 times, but are comfortable with slightly higher levels immediately following an acquisition provided 
adequate hedging is in place to support forecasted cash flows. Our ability to obtain financing is subject to external factors including, 
but not limited to, fluctuations in equity and commodity markets, economic downturns, and interest and foreign exchange rates. 
Adverse changes in these factors could require our management to alter our current business plan. 
 
As a result of the acquisition of assets in East Central and Southern Alberta in September, our bank credit facility increased to $325 
million. Proceeds from the issuance of the U.S.$250 million senior notes were used to partially repay amounts drawn under the credit 
facility. Outstanding bank debt plus working capital deficiency at December 31, 2004 totaled $103.3 million, leaving approximately 
$222 million undrawn. The amount available under the bank credit facility may be redetermined by our lenders from time to time 
based on lenders’ estimates of future cash flows from our oil and natural gas properties. Thus, our ability to draw on this facility may 
change. We may draw under this facility, or complete additional financings in the form of senior notes, convertible debentures or 
Trust Units to expand the capital program or to finance additional acquisitions. We may also utilize bridge financing, similar to that 
used in 2003 and 2004, if required. 
 
Our bank debt will be repaid or refinanced in June 2005 with a similar facility. As lenders calculate the amount of such facilities using 
conservative price assumptions, management does not anticipate a significant change to the amount available under the new facility. 
The long term to maturity of the senior notes allows us significant flexibility in determining how that particular debt is refinanced. 
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A breakdown of our outstanding Trust Units and potentially dilutive instruments are as follows: 

($ amounts are in 000s) 2004 2003 % Change
Trust Units outstanding 41,788,500                 17,109,006                 144%
Exchangeable shares outstanding 455,547                      -                             -                             
   Trust Units represented by Exchangeable Shares1 485,003                      -                             -                             
Market price of Trust Units at end of period ($/unit) 22.95                          14.07                          63%
Total market value of Trust Units at end of period2 970,177$                    240,724$                    303%
9% Convertible debentures3 10,700$                      -                             -                             
8% Convertible debentures4 15,159$                      -                             -                             

Trust Unit rights outstanding5 1,117,725                   1,065,150                   5%
Total Trust Units, diluted 45,088,376                 18,174,156                 148%

As at December 31

 
(1) Exchangeable shares are exchangeable into Trust Units at the election of the holder at any time. Based on the exchange ratio in effect on December 31, 2004 of 
1.06466. 
(2) Including Trust Units outstanding and assuming exchange of all exchangeable shares. 
(3) Each debenture in this series has a face value of $1,000 and is convertible, at the option of the holder at any time, into Trust Units at a price of $14.00 per Trust Unit. 
If Debenture holders converted all outstanding debentures in this series at December 31, 2004 an additional 764,286 Trust Units would be issuable. 
(4) Each debenture in this series has a face value of $1,000 and is convertible, at the option of the holder at any time, into Trust Units at a price of $16.25 per Trust Unit. 
If Debenture holders converted all outstanding debentures in this series at December 31, 2004 an additional 932,862 Trust Units would be issuable. 
(5) Exercisable at an average price of $10.09 per Trust Unit as at December 31, 2004. 
(6) Fully diluted units differ from diluted units for accounting purposes. Fully diluted includes Trust Units outstanding as at December 31 plus the impact of the 
conversion of exercise of exchangeable shares, Trust Unit rights and convertible debentures if completed at December 31. 
 

($millions) 2004                       2003                       % Change
Total market capitalization1 970.2$                     240.7$                     303%
Net debt 429.7                      78.5                        447%
Enterprise value (total capitalization)2 1,399.9$                  319.2$                     339%

Net debt as a percentage of enterprise value (%) 31% 25% 24%

As at December 31

 
(1) Reflects conversion of exchangeable shares into Trust Units. 
(2) Enterprise value as presented does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by Canadian GAAP and therefore it may not be comparable with the calculation of 
similar measures for other entities. Total capitalization is not intended to represent the total funds we have received from equity and debt. 
 
The increase in net debt as at December 31, 2004 compared to 2003 is primarily the result of the Storm and EnCana acquisitions. Of 
the convertible debentures outstanding at December 31, 2004, $6.6 million have converted into Units through March 24, 2005 and we 
anticipate continued conversions through 2005. 
 
Contractual Obligations 
We have entered into the following contractual obligations: 

Less than
Annual Contractual Obligation ($ thousands) Total 1 year Years 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 After 5 Years
Short and long-term debt 376,019               75,519                 -                 -                 300,500               
Interest on short and long-term debt 163,024               25,997                 70,993                 47,329                 18,705                 
Interest on convertible debentures 10,008                 2,176                   6,527                   1,305                   -                       
Operating and premise leases 7,094                   400                      4,304                   2,390                   -                       
Transportation and storage commitments 99                        35                        39                        25                        -                 
Capital commitments 700                      700                      -                       -                       -                 
Asset retirement obligations 334,803               -                       729                      3,648                   330,426               
Total 891,747               104,827               82,592                 54,697                 649,631               

Maturity

 
 
As at December 31, 2004, Harvest had entered into physical and financial contracts for production with average deliveries of 
approximately 23,524 barrels per day in 2005 and 12,500 barrels per day in 2006. We have also entered into financial contracts to 
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minimize our exposure to fluctuating electricity prices and the U.S./Canadian dollar exchange rate. Please see Note 16 to the 
consolidated financial statements for further details. 
 
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 
We have a number of immaterial operating leases in place on moveable field equipment, vehicles and office space. The leases require 
periodic lease payments and are recorded as either operating costs or G&A. We also finance our annual insurance premiums, whereby 
a portion of the annual premium is deferred and paid monthly over the balance of the term. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
One of our directors and a corporation controlled by that director had advanced $25 million to Harvest pursuant to the equity bridge 
notes as at December 31, 2003. On January 2, 2004 we paid $665,068 in accrued interest on these notes. On January 26 and 29, 2004 
we repaid the principal amount and paid $185,232 of interest accrued since December 31, 2003. The notes were amended on June 29, 
July 7 and July 9, 2004. These notes were then re-drawn by $30 million and repaid as to $20 million on August 11, 2004 and $10 
million on December 30, 2004. The notes accrued interest at 10% per annum, were secured by a fixed and floating charge on the 
assets of Harvest and were subordinate to the interest of the senior secured lenders pursuant to Harvest Operations’ credit facility.  
 
We had the option to settle the quarterly interest payments under the equity bridge notes with cash or the issue of Trust Units. If we 
elected to issue Trust Units, the number of Trust Units to be issued to settle a quarterly interest payment would be the equivalent to the 
quarterly payment amount divided by 90% of the most recent ten-day weighted average trading price. We had the option at maturity of 
the notes to settle the principal obligation with cash or with the issue of Trust Units. The terms to settle principal with units is the same 
as with the interest option described above. 
 
A corporation controlled by one of our directors sublets office space from us and we provide administrative services to that 
corporation on a cost recovery basis. 
 

($millions) 2004 2003 % Change
Land and undeveloped lease rentals 0.8$                            0.1$                            700%
Geological and geophysical 0.5                              0.2                              150%
Drilling and completion 23.0                            10.1                            128%
Well equipment, pipelines and facilities 14.0                            15.1                            (7%)
Capitalized G&A expenses 3.6                              1.3                              177%
Furniture, leaseholds and office equipment 0.8                              0.4                              100%
Total development capital asset expenditures 42.7$                          27.2$                          57%

Acquisitions 706.0$                        108.7$                        549%
Total capital asset expenditures 748.7$                       135.9$                        451%

Year ended December 31

 
 
 2004 
 East 

Central 
Alberta 

Southern 
Alberta

North 
Central 
Alberta 

Southeast 
Saskatchewan 

2004 Actual Capital by Core Area  
(%) 

49 1 6 44 

 
 2005 
 East 

Central 
Alberta 

Southern 
Alberta

North 
Central 
Alberta 

Southeast 
Saskatchewan 

2005 Budgeted Capital by Core 
Area  (%) 

30 28 18 24 

 
Development expenditures excluding acquisitions totaled $8.8 million for the three month period ended December 31, 2004, resulting 
in full year development capital expenditures of $42.7 million. This compares to $27.2 million for the full year 2003. Throughout 
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2004, our capital expenditures were dedicated to ongoing optimization and development of existing assets, primarily in our existing 
core areas. We drilled a total of 30.5 net wells in 2004, with a success rate of 100%. 
 
Excluding acquisitions, we expect that 2005 development capital expenditures will total approximately $75 million, and will be 
focused on production and reserve additions, and operating efficiency programs. In 2005, the development capital will be directed to 
the new areas including North Central Alberta and Southern Alberta, with an ongoing focus applied to East Central Alberta and 
Southeast Saskatchewan. As the development program progresses, we may reallocate funds between areas based on results achieved, 
with the goal of achieving optimal returns on capital investment. We do not anticipate being able to maintain production at year end 
2004 rates through 2005 with our planned 2005 capital program. We anticipate average production for the year to be between 34,000 
and 36,000 BOE/d. 
 
Distributions to Unitholders and Taxability 
Distributions to Unitholders are financed with cash flow from operations. Since inception, we have communicated our intention to 
pursue a strategy that will allow us to sustain $0.20 per Unit per month in distributions. During 2004, we paid $0.20 per Trust Unit for 
each month ($59.6 million) to Unitholders. This is the same per Unit level paid to Unitholders through 2003 ($29.1 million). The 
higher level of absolute distributions paid reflects a greater number of Units outstanding following the August equity issue, as well as 
the ongoing conversion of both the 9% and 8% series of convertible debentures. However, our payout ratio has declined over the past 
two years, resulting in a 46% payout ratio in the fourth quarter of 2004, compared to 75% in the same period in 2003. Retained cash 
flow will continue to be used to fund debt repayment, capital development investments and possible future acquisition opportunities. 
 

($millions except per Trust Unit amounts) 2004 2003 % Change 2004 2003 % Change
Cash distributions declared 24.8$           10.2$           143% 64.6$           30.7$           110%
  Per Trust Unit 0.60             0.60             0% 2.40             2.40             0%

Taxability of distributions (%) n/a n/a -                100% 41% 144%
  Per Trust Unit 2.40$           2.40$           0% 2.40$           0.98$           144%

Payout ratio (%) 46% 75% -39% 50% 66% -25%

Year ended December 31Three months ended December 31

 
Of the total distribution amount paid in 2004, $12.6 million was reinvested by Unitholders through the issue of 0.8 million Trust Units 
under the Distribution Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”). This reflects 21% participation under the DRIP. During 2005, management 
believes the DRIP will remain at levels similar to 2004. Should the percentage decrease, we will need to use a larger amount of cash 
flows to pay monthly distributions. 
 
Our distributions paid to Unitholders in 2004 totaled $0.20 per Trust Unit per month for an annual total of $2.40 per Trust Unit. 
However, we earned more taxable income in 2004 than the amounts distributed to Unitholders. As a result, all distributions paid in the 
year are 100% taxable. No amount of the distributions is a return of capital. Our trust indenture requires that any taxable income we 
earned in Harvest Energy Trust as an independent taxable entity that exceeds the amount paid in distributions automatically becomes 
payable to Unitholders. As a result of the excess taxable income earned in 2004, our Unitholders will receive an additional allocation 
of taxable income of $0.252 per unit, which is also 100% taxable. This amount will be reported as a corresponding increase in taxable 
income shown on those Unitholders’ T3 slips. 
 
In settlement of this additional taxable income payable, Unitholders of record on March 31, 2005 will receive an additional payment 
of Trust Units equal to $0.252 per Unit. Trust Units will be valued as at December 31, 2004 for this purpose, in accordance with the 
trust indenture. Applying the closing price of the Trust Units on December 31, 2004 of $22.95, each Unitholder of record on March 
31, 2005 will receive 0.01098 of a Trust Unit per Trust Unit held on that date in settlement of this incremental amount of taxable 
income. This payment, representing the excess income, will be made concurrently with the distribution payment to Unitholders on 
April 15, 2005. 
 
Payments to U.S. Unitholders are subject to 15% Canadian withholding tax, which applies to the taxable portion of the distribution. 
After consulting with our U.S. tax advisors, we are of the view that 2004 distributions are "qualified dividends" under the Jobs and 
Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003. These dividends are eligible for the reduced tax rate applicable to long-term capital 
gains. However, the distributions may not be qualified dividends in certain circumstances, depending on the holder’s personal 
situation (i.e. if an individual holder does not meet a holding period test). Where the distributions do not qualify, they should be 
reported as ordinary dividends. U.S. and other non-resident Unitholders are urged to consult independent legal advice on how their 
distributions should be treated for tax purposes. 
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Sensitivities 
The table below indicates the impact of changes in key variables on several of our financial measures. The figures in this table are 
based on the Units outstanding as at December 31, 2004 and our existing commodity price risk management program, and are 
provided for directional information only. 

WTI Heavy Oil Crude Oil Canadian bank Foreign exchange rate
price/bbl Price differential/bbl production prime rate U.S./Cdn.

Assumption $40.00 US $15.00 US 35,000 bbl/d 4.25% 1.21
Change (plus or minus) $1.00 US $1.00 US 1,000 bbl/d 1.00% 0.01

Annualized impact on:
Cash flow from operations ($000's) $4,630 $7,456 $12,370 $631 $2,399
Per Trust Unit, basic $0.12 $0.18 $0.29 $0.02 $0.06
Per Trust Unit, diluted $0.11 $0.17 $0.29 $0.02 $0.05

Payout ratio 1.4% 2.2% 3.7% 0.2% 0.7%

Variable

 
 
As noted above, our commodity price risk management program can reduce sensitivities due to the oil price derivatives executed 
under our risk management program. Those contracts in place as at December 31, 2004 are documented in the table below. The prices 
shown for collars, indexed puts and participating swaps are floor prices. The nature of those instruments allows us to participate in 
positive price movements above these levels, while providing fixed price realizations if the market price drops below the floor price. 
 

Volume (bbls/d) Pricing ($/bbl) Volume (bbls/d) Pricing ($/bbl)
WTI Crude Oil Swaps 1,028                       23.12$                     -                          -                          
WTI Crude Oil Collars 3,996                       28.16$                     -                          -                          
WTI Indexed Put Contracts 18,500                     35.95$                     3,750                       34.00$                     
WTI Participating Swaps -                          -                          8,750                       38.16$                     

2005 2006

 
 
Example of Price Realizations with “Indexed Put” Commodity Derivative Contract (7,000 bbl/d) 

WTI Market Price Harvest Realized Price 
 $       25.00   $                 35.00  
 $       26.00   $                 35.00  
 $       27.00   $                 35.00  
 $       28.00   $                 35.00  
 $       29.00   $                 35.00  
 $       30.00   $                 35.00  
 $       31.00   $                 35.00  
 $       32.00   $                 35.00  
 $       33.00   $                 35.00  
 $       34.00   $                 35.00  
 $       35.00   $                 35.00  
 $       36.00   $                 35.66  
 $       37.00   $                 36.32  
 $       38.00   $                 36.98  
 $       39.00   $                 37.64  
 $       40.00   $                 38.30  
 $       41.00   $                 38.96  
 $       42.00   $                 39.62  
 $       43.00   $                 40.28  
 $       44.00   $                 40.94  
 $       45.00   $                 41.60  
 $       46.00   $                 42.60  
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 $       47.00   $                 43.60  
 $       48.00   $                 44.60  
 $       49.00   $                 45.60  
 $       50.00   $                 46.60  
 $       51.00   $                 47.60  
 $       52.00   $                 48.60  
 $       53.00   $                 49.60  
 $       54.00   $                 50.60  
 $       55.00   $                 51.60  
 
The graph above shows the Harvest realized price plotted against a changing WTI price. The white line is our realized price and the 
black line is the WTI price. The floor is set at $35, so if WTI is below $35, we realize $35. For spot prices above $35, we receive spot 
price less 34% of the difference between spot price and $35, until WTI reaches $45, at which time we will realize the WTI price less 
$3.40 at that price point and higher. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
Oil and Natural Gas Accounting 
In accounting for oil and natural gas activities, we can choose to account for our oil and natural gas activities using either the full cost 
or the successful efforts method of accounting. 
 
We follow the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants guideline 16, “Oil and Gas Accounting – Full Cost” for the full cost 
method of accounting for our oil and natural gas activities. All costs of acquiring oil and natural gas properties and related exploration 
and development costs, including overhead charges directly related to these activities, are capitalized and accumulated in one cost 
centre. Maintenance and repairs are charged against income, and renewals and enhancements that extend the economic life of the 
capital assets are capitalized. Any gains or losses on disposition of oil and natural gas properties are not recognized unless that 
disposition would alter the rate of depletion by 20% or more. The provision for depletion and depreciation of petroleum and natural 
gas assets is calculated on the unit-of-production method, based on proved reserves before royalties as estimated by independent 
petroleum engineers. The basis used for the calculation of the provision is the capitalized costs of petroleum and natural gas assets 
plus the estimated future development costs of proved undeveloped reserves. Reserves are converted to equivalent units on the basis of 
six thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of oil. The reserve estimates used in these calculations can have a significant 
impact on net income, and any downward revision in this estimate could result in a higher depletion and depreciation expense. In 
addition, a downward revision of this reserve estimate could require an additional charge to income as a result of the computation of 
the prescribed ceiling test calculation under this guideline. Under this method of accounting, an impairment test is applied to the 
overall carrying value of the capital assets for a Canada-wide cost centre with reserves valued at estimated future commodity prices at 
period end. 
 
Under the successful efforts method of accounting, all exploration costs, except costs associated with drilling successful exploration 
wells, are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and costs are generated on a property by property basis. Impairment is 
also determined on a property by property basis.  
 
The difference between these two approaches is not expected to produce significantly different results for us as the drilling activity we 
undertake is of a low risk nature and success rates are high; however, each policy is likely to generate a different carrying value of 
capital assets and a different net income. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
There are a number of critical estimates underlying the accounting policies applied when preparing the consolidated financial 
statements due to timing differences between when certain activities take place and when these activities are reported on. Changes in 
these estimates could have a material impact on our reported results. 
 
Reserves 
The process of estimating reserves is complex. It requires significant judgments and decisions based on available geological, 
geophysical, engineering and economic data. In the process of estimating the economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves 
and related future net cash flows, we incorporate many factors and assumptions such as:  
• Expected reservoir characteristics based on geological, geophysical and engineering assessments; 
• Future production rates based on historical performance and expected future operating and investment activities; 
• Future oil and gas prices and quality differentials; and 
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• Future development costs. 
 
Reserve estimates impact net income through depletion, the determination of asset retirement obligations and the application of an 
impairment test. Revisions or changes in the reserve estimates can have either a positive or a negative impact on net income, capital 
assets and asset retirement obligations.  
 
The estimates in reserves impact many of our accounting estimates including our depletion calculation. A decrease of reserves by 10% 
would result in an increase of approximately $11 million in our depletion expense. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations 
In the determination of our asset retirement obligations, management is required to make a significant number of estimates with 
respect to activities that will occur in many years to come. In arriving at the recorded amount of the asset retirement obligation 
numerous assumptions are made with respect to ultimate settlement amounts, inflation factors, credit adjusted discount rates, timing of 
settlement and expected changes in legal, regulatory, environmental and political environments. The asset retirement obligation also 
results in an increase to the carrying cost of capital assets. The obligation accretes to a higher amount with the passage of time as it is 
determined using discounted present values. A change in any one of the assumptions could impact the estimated future obligation and 
in return, net income. It is difficult to determine the impact of a change in any one of our assumptions. As a result, a reasonable 
sensitivity analysis cannot be performed. 
 
Impairment of Capital Assets 
In determining if the capital assets are impaired there are numerous estimates and judgments involved with respect to our cash flow 
estimates. The two most significant assumptions in determining cash flows are future prices and reserves. 
 
The estimates of future prices require significant judgments about highly uncertain future events. Historically, oil and gas prices have 
exhibited significant volatility. The prices used in carrying out our impairment test are based on prices derived from a consensus of 
future price forecasts among industry analysts. Given the significant assumptions required and the possibility that actual conditions 
will differ, we consider the assessment of impairment to be a critical accounting estimate. 
 
If forecast WTI crude oil prices were to fall to a range between high U.S.$20 to low U.S.$30 levels, the initial assessment of 
impairment indicators would not change; however, below that level, we would likely experience an impairment. Although, oil and 
natural gas prices fluctuate a great deal in the short-term, they are typically stable over a longer time horizon. This mitigates potential 
for impairment.  
Any impairment charges would reduce our net income. 
 
It is difficult to determine and assess the impact of a decrease in our proved reserves on our impairment tests. The relationship 
between the reserve estimate and the estimated undiscounted cash flows is complex. As a result, we are unable to provide a reasonable 
sensitivity analysis of the impact that a reserve estimate decrease would have on our assessment of impairment. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policy 
Asset Retirement Obligations 
In December 2002, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”. This standard requires recognition of a 
liability representing the fair value of the future retirement obligations associated with capital assets. This fair value is capitalized and 
amortized over the same period as the underlying asset. The standard is effective for all fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 
2004. See Notes 3 and 7 to our consolidated financial statements. 
 
Hedging Relationships 
In November 2002, the CICA published an amended Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships”. The guideline establishes 
conditions where hedge accounting may be applied. It is effective for years beginning on or after July 1, 2003. The guideline impacted 
our net income and net income per Trust Unit, as certain financial instruments for oil and natural gas do not qualify for hedge 
accounting. See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements. Where hedge accounting does not apply, any changes in the fair 
values of the financial instruments relating to a period can either reduce or increase net income for that period. We adopted this 
standard January 1, 2004, which has resulted in a reduction in our pretax income of $11.3 million. At October 1, 2004, we ceased 
hedge accounting for all of our derivative instruments. 
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Recent Canadian Accounting and Related Pronouncements 
In an effort to harmonize Canadian GAAP with U.S. GAAP, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board has recently issued new 
Handbook sections: 
• 1530, Comprehensive Income; 
• 3855, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement; and 
• 3865, Hedges. 
 
Under these new standards, all financial assets should be measured at fair value with the exception of loans, receivables and 
investments that are intended to be held to maturity and certain equity investments, which should be measured at cost. Similarly, all 
financial liabilities should be measured at fair value when they are held for trading or they are derivatives. Gains and losses on 
financial instruments measured at fair value will be recognized in the income statement in the periods they arise with the exception of 
gains and losses arising from: 
 
• financial assets held for sale, for which unrealized gains and losses are deferred in other comprehensive income until sold or 
impaired; and 
• certain financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting. 
 
Sections 3855 and 3865 make use of “other comprehensive income”. Other comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, 
gains and losses that are excluded from net income. Unrealized gains and losses on qualifying hedging instruments, foreign currency, 
and unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments held for sale will be included in other comprehensive income and reclassified 
to net income when realized. Comprehensive income and its components will be a required disclosure under the new standard. These 
standards are effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006. As we 
do not apply hedge accounting to any of our derivative instruments, we do not expect these pronouncements to have a significant 
impact on our consolidated financial results. 
 
Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”) 
In June 2003, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline 15 “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“AcG-15”). AcG-15 defines 
VIEs as entities in which either: the equity at risk is not sufficient to permit that entity to finance its activities without additional 
financial support from other parties; or equity investors lack voting control, an obligation to absorb expected losses or the right to 
receive expected residual returns. AcG-15 harmonizes Canadian and U.S. GAAP and provides guidance for companies consolidating 
VIEs in which it is the primary beneficiary. The guideline is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning on or after 
November 1, 2004. We do not expect this guideline to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 
 
Financial Instruments 
The CICA Handbook Section 3860 “Financial Instruments – Disclosure and Presentation” has been amended to provide guidance for 
classifying certain financial instruments that embody obligations that may be settled by the issuance of the issuer's equity shares as 
debt when the instrument that embodies the obligations does not establish an ownership relationship. As a result of this amendment, 
the convertible debentures will be reclassified from equity to debt, with possibly a small portion representing the value of the 
conversion feature remaining in equity. At this time, management has not fully assessed the allocation, if any, between debt and 
equity. The mandatory effective date for the amendment is for fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004. 
 
Operational and Other Business Risks 
Our financial and operating performance is subject to risks and uncertainties which include, but are not limited to: operational risk, 
reserve risk, commodity price risk, financial risk, environmental, health and safety risk, regulatory risk, and other risk specifically 
discussed previously in this MD&A. We intend to continue executing our business plan to create value for Unitholders by paying 
stable monthly distributions and increasing the net asset value per Trust Unit. All of our risk management activities are carried out 
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of Harvest Operations Corp., and are intended to mitigate the risks noted above as 
follows:  
 
Operational risk associated with the production of oil and natural gas: 
• Applying a proactive management approach to our properties; 
• Selectively adding skilled and experienced employees and providing encouragement and opportunities to maintain and improve 
technical competence; and 
• Remunerating employees with a combination of average industry salary and benefits combined with a merit based bonus plan to 
reward success in execution of our business plan. 
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Reserve risk with respect to the quantity of recoverable reserves: 
• Acquiring oil and natural gas properties that have high-quality reservoirs combined with mature, predictable and reliable production 
and thus reduce technical uncertainty; 
• Subjecting all property acquisitions to rigorous operational, geological, financial and environmental review; and 
• Pursuing a capital expenditure program to reduce production decline rates, improve operating efficiency and increase ultimate 
recovery of the resource-in-place. 
 
Commodity price risk, arising from fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices due to market forces: 
• Maintaining a risk-management policy and committee to continuously review effectiveness of existing actions, identify new or 
developing issues and devise and recommend to the Board of Directors of Harvest Operations Corp. action to be taken; 
• Maintaining a program to manage variability in commodity prices and electricity costs utilizing swaps, collars and option contracts 
with a portfolio of credit-worthy counterparties; and 
• Maintaining a low cost structure to maximize product netbacks. 
 
Financial risk, such as volatility in equity markets, foreign exchange rates, interest rates, price differentials, credit risk and ability to 
meet debt service obligations: 
• Monitoring financial markets to ensure the cost of debt and equity capital is kept as low as reasonably possible; 
• Retaining up to 50% of the cash available for distribution to finance capital expenditures and future property acquisitions; 
• Monitoring our financial position and foreign exchange markets with the intent of taking steps necessary to minimize the impact of 
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; 
• Comparing actual financial performance against pre-determined expectations and making changes where necessary; and 
• Carrying adequate insurance to cover property and business interruption losses. 
 
Environmental, health and safety risk associated with well and production facilities: 
• Adhering to our safety program and keeping abreast of current industry practices; 
• Committing funds on an ongoing basis, toward the remediation of potential environmental issues; and 
• Accumulating sufficient cash resources to pay for future asset retirement costs. 
 
Regulatory risk arising from changing government policy risks, including revisions to royalty legislation, income tax laws, and 
incentive programs related to the oil and natural gas industry: 
• Retaining an experienced, diverse and actively involved Board of Directors to ensure good corporate governance; and 
• Engaging technical specialists when necessary to advise and assist with the implementation of policies and procedures to assist in 
dealing with the changing regulatory environment. 
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CEO CERTIFICATION 

PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 (a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, Jacob Roorda, President certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 40-F of Harvest Energy Trust; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) 
for the issuer and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information 
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is 
being prepared; 

 
b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and 

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

 
c) Disclosed in this report any change in the issuer’s internal control over financial reporting 

that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control over financial 
reporting 

 
5. The issuer’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 

internal control over financial reporting, to the issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the 
issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal 
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the 
issuer’s  ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.  

Date:  March 30, 2005 //signed 
 Jacob Roorda 
 President  
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CFO CERTIFICATION 
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14 (a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I, David J. Rain, Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 40-F of Harvest Energy Trust; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows of the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) 
for the issuer and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information 
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is 
being prepared; 

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the issuer’s internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control over financial 
reporting; and  

5. The issuer’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the 
issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal 
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the 
issuer’s  ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

 
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who 

have a significant role in the issuer’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Date:  March 30, 2005 //signed 
 David J. Rain 
 Vice-President and 
 Chief Financial Officer 
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CEO CERTIFICATION 

PURSUANT TO U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the annual report of Harvest Energy Trust (the “Company”) 
on Form 40-F for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jacob Roorda, President of the 
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the 
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

 
 
Date:  March 30, 2005 
 
 
 
 

//signed 
Name: Jacob Roorda 
Title: President 
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CFO CERTIFICATION  

PURSUANT TO U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the annual report of Harvest Energy Trust (the “Company”) 
on Form 40-F for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004 as filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David J. Rain, Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the 
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 
 

 
 
Date:  March 30, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 //signed 
Name: David J. Rain 
Title: Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer 
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COMMENTS BY AUDITORS FOR U.S. READERS ON CANADA U.S. REPORTING 
DIFFERENCE 

 
 In the United States, reporting standards for auditors require the addition of an 
explanatory paragraph (following the opinion paragraph) when there is a change in accounting 
principles that has a material effect on the comparability of the company’s financial statements, 
such as the change described in Note 3 (c) – Financial Instruments – to the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for the years then 
ended.  Our report to the shareholders dated March 24, 2005 is expressed in accordance with 
Canadian reporting standards which do not require a reference to such a change in accounting 
principles in the auditors’ report when the change is properly accounted for and adequately 
disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
 
 

//signed 
 
KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
 
March 24, 2005 
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

 To: The Board of Directors 
  Harvest Energy Trust 

 
We consent to the use of our report dated March 24, 2005 included in this annual 

report on Form 40-F. 
 
 
 
//signed 

KPMG LLP 

 

Calgary, Canada 
March 24, 2005 
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ENGINEERS 

We hereby consent to the use in this Annual Report on Form 40-F of Harvest Energy 
Trust for the year ended December 31, 2004 of our report, dated January 1, 2005, evaluating the crude oil, 
natural gas, and natural gas liquids reserves attributable to properties owned by Harvest Energy Trust. 

 
 

McDaniel & Associates Ltd. 

Calgary, Alberta 

_______________________ 

Yours truly, 

 

//signed 

McDaniel & Associates Ltd. 

_____________________________ 
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ENGINEERS 

We hereby consent to the use in this Annual Report on Form 40-F of Harvest Energy 
Trust for the year ended December 31, 2004 of our report effective December 31, 2004, dated March 3, 
2005, evaluating the crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids reserves attributable to certain 
properties owned by Harvest Energy Trust. 

 
 

Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. 

Calgary, Alberta 

_______________________ 

Yours truly, 

 

//signed 

Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. 

_____________________________ 

Vice President 

 
 



EXHIBIT 99.12 
 

 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ENGINEERS 

We hereby consent to the use in this Annual Report on Form 40-F of Harvest Energy 
Trust for the year ended December 31, 2004 of our report, dated January 11, 2005, evaluating the crude 
oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids reserves attributable to properties owned by Harvest Energy Trust. 

 
 

Paddock Lindstrom & Associates Ltd. 

Calgary, Alberta 

_______________________ 

Yours truly, 

 

//signed 

Paddock Lindstrom & Associates Ltd. 

_____________________________ 
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